SOLIDCLOUDS

Company Description / June 2021

Listing of shares on Nasdaq First North Iceland




This Company Description (hereafter referred to as the “Company Description”) has been prepared by Solid
Clouds hf., reg. no. 600913-2550, address at Eidistorg 17, 170 Seltjarnarnes, an Icelandic public limited company
(hereafter referred to as the “Company”, “Solid Clouds” or the “Issuer”) in relation to a proposed listing of Solid
Clouds’s shares (hereafter referred to as the “Shares”) on the Nasdaq First North Iceland market (hereafter referred
to as “First North” or “First North Iceland”).

In parallel with the issuance of this Company Description, the Company will launch a public offering (hereafter
referred to as “the Offering”) whereby Arion Bank will act as the Manager of the Offering. The Offering will
consist of (i) orderbook for subscriptions amounting to ISK 100,000 and up to ISK 15,000,000 and (ii) orderbook
for subscriptions over the size of ISK 15,000,000. As the proceeds from the public offering is less than EUR
8,000,000, the Offering is exempt from issuing a prospectus in accordance with article 3 under the Act on
Prospectus for Securities When Offered to the Public Offering and Admitted to Trading on a Regulated Market
no. 14/2020 or Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council.

The public offering is expected to close on 30 June 2021 and the shares subsequently admitted to trading on the
First North Market.

The Company Description has been drawn up under the responsibility of the Issuer, Solid Clouds, and it has been
reviewed by Nasdaq Iceland.

This Company Description does not constitute a prospectus under the Act on Prospectus for Securities
When Offered to the Public Offering or Admitted to Trading on a Regulated Market no. 14/2020 or
Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council.

}:0:{ Arion Bank

Arion Bank hf.
Certified Adviser to Solid Clouds hf. in relation to its listing on First North Iceland



Nasdaq First North Disclaimer

Nasdaq First North Growth Market Iceland is a multilateral trading facility (MTF), as defined in EU
legislation (as implemented in national law), operated by Nasdaq Iceland hf. Issuers on Nasdaqg First
North Growth Market Iceland are not subject to all the same rules as issuers on a regulated main market,
as defined in EU legislation (as implemented in national law). Instead they are subject to a less extensive
set of rules and regulations adjusted to small growth companies. The risk in investing in an issuer on
Nasdaq First North Growth Market Iceland may therefore be higher than investing in an issuer on the
main market. The Exchange approves the application for admission to trading.
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 The Company

This Company Description (hereafter referred to as the “Company Description”) has been prepared by Solid
Clouds hf., reg. no. 600913-2550, address at Eidistorg 17, 170 Seltjarnarnes, an Icelandic public limited company
(hereafter referred to as the “Company”, “Solid Clouds” or the “Issuer”) in relation to a proposed listing of Solid
Clouds’s shares (hereafter referred to as the “Shares”) on the Nasdaq First North Iceland market (hereafter referred
to as “First North” or “First North Iceland”).

1.2 Reasons for Trading on First North

The Company considers that a listing of the Company's shares is an important milestone for Solid Clouds and its
operations. The aim of the listing is to raise further capital to support the operational ambitions of the Company
and thus enabling additional investors to participate in Solid Clouds’ growth story and value creation. A First
North listing is expected to contribute to an increased interest in the Shares and the Company among investors, as
well as among customers, media and other stakeholders. Additionally, a First North listing provides increased
liquidity in the trading of the Shares, which is advantageous for existing shareholders. Overall, Solid Clouds
assesses that a First North listing of the Company's Shares will benefit the Company's future development and it
is on those grounds that the Company has applied for admission of trading of the Company's shares on First North
Iceland.

1.3 Important Information for Investors

Prospective investors in the Company should carefully consider all information provided in the Company
Description, particularly the Risk Factors in chapter 2, describing certain risks associated with an investment in
Solid Clouds. The Company Description shall not in any way be viewed as a recommendation or solicitation to
buy, hold or sell any security, including but not limited to the Company’s shares, or to take any investment
decision. Prospective investors are solely responsible for any investment decision taken based on the information
in the Company Description.

This Company Description is prepared solely in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on First North
Iceland and may not be used for any other purpose. Copyright of this Company Description and its contents is the
property of the Company. No part of this Company Description may be reproduced, distributed or copied in any
manner without the prior written approval of the Company. The prohibition to reproduce, distribute or copy applies
regardless of the nature of the information at issue and the purpose of the reproduction, distribution or copy.
Despite the aforementioned, the information in the Company Description may be copied for private and non-
commercial purpose. Copies of this Company Description may not be distributed or sent, directly or indirectly,
into the United States, the United Kingdom, Canada, Australia, South Africa, Japan or any jurisdiction where its
distribution or publication would be unlawful.

1.3.1  Approximation of numbers

Quantitative values in this Company Description (e.g. monetary values, percentages etc.) are presented with such
precision that is deemed by the Company to be sufficient to convey adequate and appropriate information on the
relevant matter. Some quantitative values have been rounded up to the nearest reasonable decimal or integer value
to avoid excessive detail. As a result, certain values presented as percentages do not necessarily add up to 100%
because of approximation.

1.3.2  Information from third parties

The Company Description contains historical and future oriented information. In cases where the information has
been obtained from third parties, the Company is responsible for ensuring that such information has been
reproduced correctly. To the best of the Company’s knowledge, no information has been omitted in such a way
that could make the information incorrect or misleading in relation to the original sources. However, the Company
has not verified the figures, or other information that has been obtained from third parties. As a result, the
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Company’s Board of Directors does not accept any responsibility for the completeness or accuracy of such
information that is presented in the Company Description. This should be taken into consideration when reading
such information.

1.3.3  Completeness of information

When it comes to evaluating Solid Clouds as an investment opportunity, the risk factors listed in this Company
Description are the most important ones, in the opinion of the Board of Directors and management of the Company.
However, other risk factors might influence the operations and financial results of the issuer. This should be taken
into consideration when evaluating Solid Clouds as an investment opportunity.

1.4  Dating of Information and Updates

This Company Description is based on information available at 23 June 2021 unless otherwise stated. Financial
information is based on information available in the Company’s financial statements for the period 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2020. Any relevant and significant changes from this time will be addressed and indicated where
applicable. Certain information contained in this Company Description, including any information on the
Company’s plans or future financial or operating performance and other statements that express the Company’s
management’s expectations or estimates of future performance, constitute forward-looking statements (when used
in this document, the words “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate” and “expect” and similar expressions, as they relate
to the Company or its management, are intended to identify forward-looking statements). Such statements are
based on a number of estimates and assumptions that, while considered reasonable by management at the time, are
subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties. The Company cautions that such
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual financial
results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from the Company’s estimated
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by those forward-looking statements. The
Company will update the information contained in this Company Description only to such extent, at such intervals
and by such means as required by the applicable law or the Nasdaq First North Nordic — Rulebook, dated 1 January
2019 (hereafter referred to as the “First North Rulebook™) or considered necessary and appropriate in the
Company’s sole discretion.

1.5 First North Iceland and Certified Adviser

First North Iceland is a multilateral trading facility operated by Nasdaq Iceland hf. It does not have the same legal
status as a regulated market. Companies on First North Iceland are regulated by First North Iceland’s rules and
laws on securities transaction no. 108/2007, but not by the same legal requirements set for companies admitted to
trading on a regulated market. An investment in a company traded on First North Iceland generally involves more
risk than an investment in a company on a regulated market. Nasdaq Iceland hf. approves applications regarding
admission to trading. Nasdaq Iceland hf. is responsible for checking that both companies and Certified Advisers
comply with First North Iceland’s rules as well as monitoring the trading on First North Iceland. Arion Bank hf.,
reg. no. 581008-0150, Borgartin 19, 105 Reykjavik (hereafter referred to as the “Certified Adviser” or “Arion
Bank”), which is a member of and has an agreement with Nasdaq lceland hf., is the Certified Adviser for the
Company in its application and listing process on the First North market and for the first 12 months from the
Company’s admission to trading on First North Iceland. Arion Bank holds a full banking license under the Act on
Financial Undertakings, no. 161/2002 and is regulated by the Icelandic Financial Supervisory Authority. The
Issuer has chosen to be fully Exchange-monitored after the shares have been admitted to trading.

1.6  Taxation Issues in Iceland

The Company’s Shares might be subject to taxation in Iceland in accordance with effective tax legislation at any
given time. Capital gains arising from the sale or disposal of Solid Clouds’ shares are generally subject to tax in
Iceland. Furthermore, in the event that dividends are paid in respect of the Shares, the Company is obligated to
withhold taxes on such payments. The Company has received a sanction on tax deduction for individuals that
invest in new equity issuances by the Company from the Icelandic Revenue and Customs. This means that
individuals that are residents in Iceland for tax purposes are applicable for tax deduction from their income tax
and/or their capital tax gains base of up to 75% of their investment in new share capital issued by Solid Clouds.
The minimum investment per individual is ISK 300,000 and the maximum deduction for an investment up to ISK
15,000,000 per individual. For tax benefits to be valid, investors need to hold on to the shares for at least three



years, if not, the tax deduction is reversed with a 15% surcharge on the initial investment. The tax deduction does
not apply to legal entities. Investors are encouraged to seek advice on the tax issues of investing in Solid Clouds.

Foreign parties should establish whether a double taxation treaty is in force between their country of residency and
Iceland in order to determine their tax liability in Iceland. In addition, limited liability companies residing within
the European Economic Area, EFTA and the Faroe Islands can apply to have withholding tax on dividends
reimbursed by filing an Icelandic tax return for the year in which the withholding tax is incurred. Prospective
investors are strongly advised to seek independent legal and tax advice regarding sale or purchase of Shares in the
Company.



1.7  Liability Statement of the Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company declare that, to the best of their knowledge, the information
provided in the Company Description is accurate and that, to the best of their knowledge, the Company Description
is not subject to any omissions that may serve to distort the picture the Company Description is to provide.
Moreover, to the best of their knowledge, relevant information from minutes of board meetings and auditors’
records is included in the Company Description.

Sigurlina V. Ingvarsdottir

Chairman
Olafur Andri Ragnarsson Eggert Ami Gislason
Vice Chairman Board member
Guomundur Ingi Jonsson Svanhvit Frioriksdéttir
Board member Board member



1.8 Liability Statement of Arion Bank

Arion Bank as the Certified Adviser to Solid Clouds, expressly disclaims any liability based on the information
contained in this Company Description or individual parts thereof and will not accept any responsibility for the
correctness, completeness or import of such information. No information contained in this Company Description
or disseminated by the Company may be construed to constitute a warranty or representation, whether express or
implied, made to any third parties by any person other than the Company.

1.9 Potential Conflicts of Interest

For the purposes of preparing and issuing this Company Description, the Board of Directors has relied on the
advice and expertise of the Company’s management team and independent counsels.

Solid Clouds’ board members and members of the management team own shares and/or stock options, as can be
seen in chapter 5.9 Share ownership by stakeholders. Several of these individuals have contributed to the
preparation of this Company Description and the admission of Solid Clouds’ shares to trading on the First North
market.

Arion Bank, the Certified Adviser in the process of seeking the admission of Solid Clouds’ share to trading on the
First North market and manager of the public offering, provides general banking services to the Company.

Solid Clouds has rental agreements for office space and an apartment with Vivaldi island ehf. and Dworzak Island
ehf. which are in the ownership of Jon von Techner. Jon owns through Vivaldi 1,754,119 shares in Solid Clouds
or a 1.39% stake in Solid Clouds. The agreements are priced at fair market value.

It could be argued that conflicts of interest may arise in such situations, but, in accordance with the statement made
by the Board of Directors in chapter 1.7 Liability Statement of the Board of Directors, the information in this
Company Description is, to the best of the Board of Directors' knowledge, factual and contains no omission likely
to affect its import.

The Board of Directors is not aware of any other potential conflicts of interest between the duties of the members
of the Board of Directors or members of the Issuer’s management team to the Issuer and their private interests or
other duties.

1.10 Investor Examination and Analysis

By acquiring any shares or otherwise engaging in transactions depending on the value of such shares, investors
agree that they are relying on their own examination and analysis of this Company Description (including the
financial information that forms an indispensable part of this Company Description) and any information on the
Company that is available in the public domain. They also acknowledge the risk factors that may affect the outcome
of such transaction (as presented under “Risk Factors” below).

In the case of a dispute related to this Company Description, under certain circumstances, courts other than the
Icelandic courts may have jurisdiction, and consequently a need may arise for the plaintiff to bear relevant state
fees and translation costs in respect of this Company Description or other relevant documents.

1.11 Third-party information

In this Company Description, certain information has been sourced from third parties. The Company confirms that
where information has been sourced from a third party, such information has been accurately reproduced and that
as far as the Company is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts
have been omitted that would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. Where information
sourced from third parties has been presented, the source of such information has been identified. The Company
confirms that no statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in this Company Description.



2 RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Company’s shares is subject to a number of risks. Prior to investing in the Shares,
prospective investors should carefully consider risk factors associated with any investment in the Shares, the
Company‘s business and the industry in which it operates together with all other information contained in this
Company Description, including, in particular, the risk factors described below.

Prospective investors should note that the risks relating to the Company, its industry and the Shares summarised
below are the risks that the Company believes to be the most relevant to an assessment by a prospective investor
of whether to consider an investment in the Shares.

The following is not an exhaustive list or explanation of all risks which investors may face when making an
investment in the Shares and should be used as guidance only. Additional risks and uncertainties relating to the
Company that are not currently known to it, or that the Company currently deems not to be risks, may individually
or cumulatively also have a material adverse effect on the Company ‘s business, prospects, financial position and/or
results of operations and, if any such risk should occur, the price of the Shares may decline and investors could
lose all or part of their investment. Investors should consider carefully whether an investment in the Shares is
suitable for them in light of the information in this Company Description and their personal circumstances.

The risk factors below are not ranked in any specific order.

2.1 Industry and Operational Risk
2.1.1  History of operating losses

Solid Clouds has a history of operating losses and there is no guarantee that its future activities (including new
game releases) will be commercially successful. There is also a risk that Solid Clouds’ historical investment in
game and its IP development will not be recovered from future earnings.

2.1.2  Access to Capital

The Company’s ability to fund capital intensive game development projects is critical to Solid Clouds’ success
and any failure to raise sufficient capital at appropriate times could have a material adverse effect on its financial
position and prospects.

2.1.3  Dependency on key personnel

Solid Clouds’ operations depend on its ability to recruit and retain qualified employees. Loss of key personnel can
complicate and delay ongoing and planned projects, which could possibly have a negative impact on the
Company’s operations, operating profit and overall financial position. In order to mitigate the risk of losing key
personnel and management to competing firms the Company has a share option plan for key personal and career-
based development plan.

2.1.4  Delayed game developments

Delays in the Company’s planned and ongoing game projects can have a negative effect on its cash flow, revenues
and operating margins. The completion of a game may also require more resources than what was originally
calculated and thus have a negative impact on the Company’s operations, operating profit and financial position.

2.1.5 Dependency on partners and distribution channels

The Company’s operations depend on partners and distributor channels. For example, the Company foresees to
distribute its games through significant global digital game channels, such as Steam, Epic Store, Apple App Store
and Google Play Store. A sudden change in the Company’s relationship with future partners and companies can
damage the Company. The Company’s operations would be damaged if any partner or distributor interrupts or
restricts access to their respective platforms for the Company or modifies their terms. Changes in terms could for
example be increases in fees, prolonged revenue settlements and restrictions in services. Such changes could
potentially be unfavourable to the Company and thus adversely affect its operations, operating profit and financial
position. Any IT break down of the Company’s partners and distributor channels may have a similar effect.



2.1.6  Risks associated with system errors and cybercrime

Any system errors or security breaches such as system intrusions or viruses risk affecting the Company’s
operations. The Company has precautions in place to ensure vast mitigation of such risks, however, more extensive
system errors or intrusions risk affecting the Company’s operating profit and financial position negatively.

2.1.7  Competitive risks

The gaming industry, like most other growth industries, is exposed to extensive competition. There are many game
developers currently active, but the distribution of digital games is mainly concentrated in a few marketplaces.
This means that competition among game developers in these marketplaces is considerable. An increased number
of game developers in the current market can lead to impaired competitiveness, which resultingly can have a
negative effect on the Company’s operations, operating results and financial position.

2.1.8  Intellectual property rights

The Company’s intellectual property rights are primarily protected through copyright protection, trade secret
legislation and/or confidentiality agreements with employees and contractors. All proprietary rights assigned to or
resulting from any work assigned to employees and contractors are the property of Solid Clouds. The Company is
furthermore the owner of all creations, ideas, inventions, original works of authorship, developments,
improvements and trade secrets which employees may solely or jointly conceive or reduce to practice, or cause to
be conceived or reduced to practice, during the period of his/her employment with the company. The Company
has registered four trademarks in Iceland (Starborne Sovereign Space, Ravage Broken Lands, Prosper Engine and
Solid Clouds). The value in these trademarks is mostly added in long-term brand equity (making brand elements
protectable), as well as the freedom to operate in the marketplace. The Company has not registered any other
intellectual property rights, including patents, design rights, and use rights, where registration may be of
importance in relation to protection of the respective intellectual property right to each of the Company’s products.
Consequently, the Company operates on a basis of non-registered intellectual property rights. It cannot be ruled
out that competitors copy the Company's platforms and products. Other companies in the same industry could also
be thought to have intellectual property rights on which the Company’s operations could be kept in force, which
could have a negative impact on the Company’s operations, operating profit and financial position. Further, game
development is a fast-evolving industry where new products are developed constantly. It is possible that the
Company unintentionally and unknowingly may infringe other entities’ intellectual property rights. Any successful
enforcement by third parties of their intellectual property rights towards the Company may have a negative impact
on the Company’s operations, operating profit and financial position.

2.1.9 Macroenvironmental risks

The Company's operations are affected by several macroeconomic factors such as inflation, exchange rates, interest
rates, GDP development and economic fluctuations. Changes in economic, financial or political conditions can
therefore have a negative impact on the Company in the form of reduced demand for the Company's products and
tightened financial conditions. These risks can adversely affect the Company's operations, operating profit and
financial position.

2.1.10 Uncertainty caused by COVID-19

The continuous development in the global COVID-19 pandemic adds an increased level of uncertainty to the
Company’s operations. As it’s impossible to predict how long the Covid-19 pandemic will last, although
vaccinations have significantly increased, it’s impossible to predict exactly how 2021 might be affected by the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic. In other words, a global shut down caused by potential additional waves
might negatively impact the Company’s business, earnings, and financial position.

2.1.11 Legal and political risks

The Company operates on markets in and outside of Iceland. Risks may arise as a result of political instability
and/or differences in governmental systems and changes in legislation as well as other relevant regulations related
to taxation and fees as well as other conditions that apply to the Company’s activities in their geographical markets.
This also means that the Company’s ability to exercise or enforce its rights and obligations may differ in different
countries and any disputes or legal proceedings may be expensive, time-consuming and the outcome may be
uncertain. These factors may have a negative impact on the Company’s operations, operating results and financial
position.
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2.1.12 Disputes

The Company has not been and is currently not involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings, which can
significantly affect the Company’s position. Other legal or arbitration proceedings may, however, in the future be
taken against the Company. Such disputes could be time consuming and result in costs, the size of which cannot
always be foreseen. Disputes could, therefore, have a material negative impact on the Company’s operations,
earnings and financial position.

2.1.13 GDPR

The Company is subject to various regulations, including general data protection regulation (GDPR). While the
Company generally has minimal personal information stored about its players, the Company nonetheless has
certain policies and procedures in place relating to compliance with such regulations. A failure to comply with
applicable regulations could result in substantial fines.

2.2  Financial Risks
2.2.1  The Company’s actual activities and performance and forward-looking ambitions

This Company Description includes certain of the Company’s financial ambitions and funding aspirations, which
are associated with substantial uncertainty. The Company’s ambitions and aspirations do not reflect any forecast
by the Company of expected financial performance and investors cannot rely on such figures for any indication
whatsoever of future results applicable for the Company. The actual activities and financial performance of the
Company in the future is subject to numerous risk factors, including those stipulated in this Company Description,
but also other circumstances outside the Company’s control.

2.2.2  Risks associated with business acquisitions

In the future, the Company may utilize an acquisition-driven growth strategy in order to promote faster growth. In
the case of acquisitions, there is always a risk that the assumptions that the Company has made regarding the
acquisition object turn out to be incorrect, which may adversely affect the Company’s operations, operating profit
and financial position.

2.2.3  Limited resources

The Company is a relatively small company with limited resources in terms of management, administration and
capital. For the successful implementation of strategic initiatives, it is important that the resources needed are
available and deployable when the need arises. There is a risk that the Company's resources will not be sufficient,
which may have a negative impact on the Company's operations, operating profit and financial position.

2.2.4  Currency risks

The Company’s revenues are currently all held in Euros and United States dollars but may in the future earn
revenues in other currencies. The Company is thus exposed to currency fluctuations, which may have a negative
impact on the Company’s operations, operating profit and financial position.

2.2.5 Financing and capital requirements

The Company has limited revenues today and relies on them growing in accordance with their business plan. The
Company’s expected growth and proceeds from the Offering mean that existing working capital and financing are
deemed sufficient for the business to be conducted for the period covering at least twelve months from the date of
this Company Description. The Company may in the future need to seek additional external financing. There is a
risk that new capital cannot be raised when needed, that new capital cannot be obtained on terms satisfactory to
the Company or that the capital raised is not sufficient to finance the business. This could lead to a significant
negative impact on the Company’s operations, earnings and financial position.

2.2.6 Insurance risk

The Company has limited insurance cover but may increase its cover in the future. If the Company is unable to
maintain its insurance cover on terms acceptable to it or if future business requirements exceed or fall outside the
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Company’s insurance cover or if the Company’s provisions for uninsured costs are insufficient to cover the final
costs it could have a material negative impact on the Company’s operations, earnings and financial position.

2.2.7  Negative publicity

The Company’s reputation is important for its business. Should the Company’s reputation be damaged, the
Company’s customers and other stakeholders could lose confidence in the Company. For instance, should the
Company or any of the members of its senior management team take an action that conflicts with the Company’s
values, or should any of the Company’s projects not meet the market’s expectation, the Company’s reputation
could be at risk. Also, unjustified negative publicity could damage the Company’s reputation. Reputation damage
could have a material negative impact on the Company’s operations, earnings and financial position.

2.2.8  Counterparty risk

The Company does not lend to its customers and is thus not exposed to counterparty risk in that regard. However,
the Company uses payment providers that accept credit card payments from customers to buy services provided
by the Company, and the payment providers subsequently transfer payments to the Company. Therefore, the
Company has at any given time claims on its payment providers.

2.2.9 Bugsand errors

Solid Clouds is taking necessary steps to ensure the full function of Frontiers?, including limiting the risk of bugs
and errors. Solid Clouds cannot guarantee that all bugs and errors will be detected or be corrected once detected.
The presence of a bug or error in a game may negatively impact the brand and reputation of Solid Clouds,
potentially resulting in a loss of revenue and a general deterioration in the financial position and prospects of Solid
Clouds. A universal measurement of risk involving bugs is not in place as they can impact the game in different
ways. Historically Solid Clouds has not had major problems because of bugs or errors. The company seeks to
maintain a strong Quality Assurance (QA) process, where all updates for Frontiers are tested. In addition, Solid
Clouds has a robust system for assessing the severity of bugs and prioritizing bugs and error fixing should they
emerge.

2.2.10 Grant funding and assistance

Solid Clouds has been the beneficiary of tax allowance for individual investors in the Company, received industry
grants and R&D tax incentives, which count for around half of the Company’s income in 2020. The company has
been required to meet certain criteria for these tax incentives. Should these criteria become more difficult to meet
or if these tax incentives will not be available to the Company, that could have a negative impact on its operations.
Legislation nr. 37/2020 stipulated that the R&D tax credit increased from 20% to 35% for small and medium sized
enterprises and that the maximum R&D cost that is applicable increased from 600 m.kr. to 1.100 m.kr. for the
years 2020 and 2021. Tax allowance for individual investors which has been beneficial for the financing of the
Company will lapse after the year 2021. If the government does not extend these measures the R&D tax credit will
decrease to 20% and the R&D cost applicable will decrease to 600 m.kr. and there will be no tax allowance for
individuals after the year 2021. The Federation of Icelandic Industries has been lobbying for the continuing of said
measures in legislation nr. 37/2020.

2.3 Risks related to the Offering and the Shares
2.3.1  Liquidity risk

There has been little trading with the Company’s shares prior to the listing on First North Iceland and it is not
possible to predict how the liquidity of the Shares will develop and how active the trading will be. A periodically
weak interest in trading in the Company’s share may reduce the conditions for active trading in the share, which
may lead to difficulties for shareholders in selling shareholdings at the desired time without the price of the share
being adversely affected.

1 Frontiers is Solid Clouds* next upcoming game and can be differentiated by offering players more freedom and exploration than many other party battler games.
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2.3.2 Market risk

The Shares will be listed on Nasdaq First North Iceland and may, therefore, be impacted by events that affect the
Icelandic equity market in general, such as macroenvironmental, political or other news-driven events. The price
of Solid Cloud’s shares may fluctuate due to these factors.

2.3.3  Denomination of shares

The share capital of the Company is denominated and traded in Icelandic kréna. An investor in the Shares of the
Company will therefore be exposed to ISK risk. The ISK exchange rate may fluctuate significantly without such
fluctuations being offset by corresponding changes in the share price of the Company.

2.3.4  Offering of additional shares

The Company may decide to raise additional capital in the future in order to pursue growth opportunities, invest
in current business ventures or for other purposes deemed relevant and necessary by the Board of Directors. In its
pursuit to raise additional capital, the Company may decide to issue additional equity, which may result in dilution
of the Shares see further information of possible dilution effects in chapter 5.9 Share ownership by stakeholders.

2.3.5  Share price development

Investing in shares and securities is always associated with risk. Prior to the Offering, there is no public market
for the Company’s Shares. There is a risk that an active and liquid trading market may not develop, or if developed,
will not be sustained after the Offering. If an active and liquid market does not develop or remain developed, there
is a risk that the liquidity and trading price of the Shares could be materially affected, and investors may have
difficulty selling their shares at a satisfactory price level.

2.3.6  Ownership risk

Shareholder ownership structure can be a risk factor for investors. Lack of leading investors or concentrated
ownership are examples of circumstances that can have negative effects on liquidity, price formation or
shareholder control, among other things. The Company’s ownership structure is fairly distributed. As of the date
of this Company Description, one shareholder holds more than 10% of Solid Clouds’ share capital, as further
described in chapter 5.7 Share capital and shareholders.

2.3.7  Dividend policy

The Company’s ability to pay dividends in the future will depend, among other things, on its financial condition,
working capital requirements and the availability of distributable profits, and reserves and cash available, and other
factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant. Dividends are decided by the Annual General Meeting
following a proposal from the Board of Directors.

2.3.8  The Offering of the Shares

The Company has applied for admittance to trading of the Shares on Nasdaq First North Market Iceland. The
admission, as well as the continued admission to trading on the Nasdaq First North Market Iceland, are subject to
requirements of free float and a sufficient number of qualified shareholders holding the Company’s Shares being
met before the first day of trading. If such requirements are not met, the admittance to trading on Nasdaq First
North Market Iceland will be declined. Withdrawal of the Offering can also occur due to a decision made by the
Company. This event can take place any time prior to the announcement of the result of the Offering. In the event
of a withdrawal, such information will be announced with a press release. Nasdaq First North Market is a
multilateral trading facility owned by Nasdaqg Nordic and does not have the same legal status as a regulated market.
Companies trading on Nasdaq First North Market are subject to a regulatory framework that is less extensive than
the framework applicable to companies trading on regulated markets. However, on both a regulated market and
the Nasdaq First North Market, regulation regarding market abuse applies. Investing in a company listed on Nasdaq
First North Market includes more risk than investing in a public listed company on a regulated market, and
investors risk losing part or all of the investment.
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3 MARKET OVERVIEW

3.1 The global games market

This Company Description contains historical market data and industry forecasts, including information related to
the size of the markets, in which the Company operates. This information has been obtained from a variety of
sources, including companies providing business intelligence products and services, literature, market reports,
company websites and other publicly available information as well as the Company’s knowledge of the markets.
Professional data suppliers state sources of historical data and aggregated by methods believed to be reliable, but
that they do not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of this information. Similarly, industry forecasts and
market research, while believed to be reliable, have not been independently verified by the Company, and the
Company does not guarantee the historical information is accurate. Industry forecasts are subject to significant
uncertainty by nature. There can be no assurance that any of the forecasts will materialize. Market statistics are
inherently subject to uncertainty and are not necessarily reflective of actual market conditions. Such statistics are
based on market research, which itself is based on sampling and subjective judgements by both the researchers
and the respondents, including judgements about what type of products and transaction should be included in the
relevant market or market segment definitions. The Company confirms that information from third parties has
been accurately cited and reproduced. To the best of the Company’s knowledge, no information has been omitted
in such a way that could make the information incorrect or misleading in relation to the original sources. However,
the Company has not verified the figures, or other information that has been obtained from third parties. As a
result, the Company’s Board of Directors does not accept any responsibility for the completeness or accuracy of
such information that is presented in the Company Description. This should be taken into consideration when
reading such information.

The global gaming industry has, throughout recent times, been one of the most rapidly growing industries among
tech-enabled entertainment services. In 2020, the global gaming market grew to USD 175 billion?.

Figure 1: Global games market, worldwide 2015 - 2023?
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A significant driving factor of this expected growth, can among others, be found in the fact that games are
increasingly playing a pivotal function in society as a pillar of entertainment, social connection and relief.

By analysis and forecast of key growth drivers, the market for gaming is expected to continue growing and is
anticipated to reach USD 218 billion by the end of 2023.2 This significant growth represents a year-on-year market
expansion of upwards of 11.2% from 2015, hence indicating the industries continued growth.

The global film industry reached approximately USD 100 billion in revenue for the first time in 2019, according
to the Motion Picture Association®, while PwC* estimated North American sports would bring in more than USD
75 billion in 2020. Both of those industries suffered from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 while
the videogame industry is expected to show double-digit growth in coming years.

While taking up roughly half of the entire global gaming industry in 2020, the mobile gaming industry is expected
to continue to outpace other gaming segments in the coming years.

2 Sources: Global Game Revenues Up an Extra $15 Billion This Year as Engagement Skyrockets. https:/newzoo.com/insights/articles/game-engagement-during-
covid-pandemic-adds-15-billion-to-global-games-market-revenue-forecast/ and https://www.statista.com

3 Source: THEME Report. https://www.mpa-apac.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/MPA-2020-THEME-Report-1.pdf

4 Source: PwC 2021 Sports Outlook. https://www.pwc.com/us/en/industries/tmt/assets/pwc-2021-tmt-sports-outlook.pdf
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Figure 2: Market share by gaming platforms in 20205  Figure 3: Market share by region 20204
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It is worth noting that more than 214 million people in the United States today play video games one hour or more
per week and that 75% of all U.S. households have at least one person who plays. In sum, 64% of U.S. adults and
70% of those under 18 regularly play video games.’

3.2 Solid Clouds focus within the gaming market

Solid Clouds is a gaming company that is currently focusing on the PC and mobile market or approximately 71%
of the total gaming market. Solid Clouds has built a solid foundation with its current platform which it plans to
further develop. It furthermore focuses on both Europe as well as North America or about 45% of the total market.
It is also competing in the market of roleplaying (RPGs®) and strategy games, and it can be estimated that between
20-30% of players enjoy those types of games®.

Based on those assumptions, and the generalization that averages apply across all sector equally, it is estimated
that annual revenues within Solid Clouds’ chosen market segment lies within the vicinity of $10-15 billion.

5 Sources: CapitallQ. https://www.capitaliq.com/, Statista.https://www.statista.com and Global Game Revenues Up an Extra $15 Billion This Year as
Engagement Skyrockets https:/newzoo.com/insights/articles/game-engagement-during-covid-pandemic-adds-15-billion-to-global-games-market-revenue-
forecast/

6 Source: Genre and Great Games. https://scontent.frkv3-1.fna.fbcdn.net/v/t39.8562-
6/117725206_696322140921481_8715572014097484678_n.pdf?_nc_cat=105&cch=1-
3&_nc_sid=ad8a9d&_nc_ohc=QoXV4F1N548AX_rG_1P&_nc_ht=scontent.frkv3-1.fna&oh=282b22f0602c8130ca8bbd602c897974&0e=60DDC1B2

7 The ESA’s 2020 Essential Facts About the Video Game Industry. https://www.theesa.com/resource/2020-essential-facts/.
8 A role-playing game is a game in which players assume the roles of characters in a fictional setting. Players take responsibility for acting out these roles within a
narrative, through a process of structured decision-making regarding character development. Actions taken within many games succeed or fail according to a formal

system of rules and guidelines.
9 Source: Facebook gaming, Genre and Great Games, understating audiences and designing better mobile games, 2020
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Solid Clouds will rely on in-game monetization, or microtransactions??, to generate revenues from its players.

The gaming industry is a large industry that has enjoyed significant growth in recent years. The industry is highly
competitive, as it is projected that the growth of recent years is expected to continue as has been outlined.

Frontiers is Solid Clouds’ next upcoming game and can be differentiated by offering players more freedom and
exploration than many other party battler games. Currently there is a limited supply of high-quality party battler
games set in space.

The Company intends to compete by regularly launching games that are focused towards a targeted audience.
Furthermore, the Company intends to build on its technical foundations and leverage the expertise of its highly
qualified employees enabling the Company to expedite their entry to markets and thus building a portfolio of
games.

3.3 Solid Clouds gaming market placement

There are many sub-genres of strategy games, from Multiplayer Battle Arena®! to Tactical Battler'? and 4X
Strategy™® (eXplore, eXpand, eXploit, and eXterminate). Strategy games are most popular in South Korea and the
US, where about one in four mobile gamers play strategy games. In the UK, about one in five plays strategy games.
Strategy games have their origin in Germany and remain popular there'* as in other parts of Europe.'®> However,
this genre remains relatively niche in Japan with only 12% of mobile gamers playing strategy games.®

Key marketing information :16

e  Strategy games and Massively Multi-User Online Role Playing Games (MMORPGs) tend to appeal to a
broad age range with research outlining the average age of 26 years and the range between 11-68 years,
and other studies indicating the average age of 35-44 years of players in the US.%"18 The gaming industry
appeals to a wide range of demographics and gender. Younger males are more likely to play for longer
and like trying out new games. They view mobile gaming as a social activity, preferring game features
that enable social interaction. This high engagement rate can often translate into higher revenue
generation.

e Due to the competitive nature of Strategy games, Strategy is among the top three genres in which
players are most likely to make an in-app purchase. Moreover, they also show an openness toward
in-app ads.

e 50% of gamers have made in-game purchases in the last year.
e Over 85% of industry revenue comes from Free to Play games.*®

e Compared to other genres, strategy games usually have higher LTV (player lifetime value).
3.3.1  The global mobile games market
The global mobile games market has been identified as the fastest growing segment within the global gaming

industry. The significant market share obtained and the massive growth experienced can be accredited by multiple
driving factors, including the increased global sales of smartphones and tablets, as well as the increased level of

10 Microtransaction is a business model where aspects of a game's contents can be purchased to enhance the game experience for the player. These aspects may
range among new playable contents, in-game currencies, cosmetic options, and otherwise unavailable or restricted gameplay advantages. Traditionally, these
purchases tend to be relatively inexpensive but numerous in variety.

1 Multiplayer online battle arena is a subgenre of strategy video games in which two teams of players compete against each other on a predefined battlefield. The
objective of these games is to destroy the opposing team's base/team together with your own team.

12 Games where players battle against NPCs (non-player-character, or computer-based opponent) or other players in a closed (often 1v1) arena setting. There is
often focus on collecting and developing your team with various methods.

134X (abbreviation of eXplore, eXpand, eXploit, and eXterminate) are a subgenre of strategy-based games. The gameplay involves building an empire. Emphasis
is placed upon economic and technological development, as well as a range of military to non-military routes to supremacy.

14 Video game preferences by genre in Germany: https://www.statista.com/forecasts/998792/video-game-preferences-by-genre-in-germany

Survey of Market Trends for Mobile Games in  Four Major European Countries (U.K.,, Germany, France, and lItaly):
https://www.cyberagent.co.jp/en/news/detail/id=12026

16 Facebook gaming, Genre and Great Games, understating audiences and designing better mobile games, 2020

17 The Demographics, Motivations and Derived Experiences of Users of Massively Multi-User Online Graphical Environments (In Press - Presence: Teleoperators
and Virtual Environments), Nick Yee, Stanford University:

https://www:.ics.uci.edu/~wscacchi/Gamel ab/Recommended%20Readings/Yee_ MMORPG_Presence_2006.pdf.

18 The ESA‘s 2020 Essential Facts About the Video Game Industry: https://www.theesa.com/resource/2020-essential-facts/.

19 Fortunly, 2020

13



https://www.ics.uci.edu/~wscacchi/GameLab/Recommended%20Readings/Yee_MMORPG_Presence_2006.pdf

wide spanning cellular connectivity through 3G, 4G and most recently, 5G. The games market is expected to
continue growing in the coming years, exceeding $200 billion at the end of 20232

2 Global Game Revenues Up an Extra $15 Billion This Year as Engagement Skyrockets: https://newzoo.com/insights/articles/game-engagement-during-covid-
pandemic-adds-15-billion-to-global-games-market-revenue-forecast/
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4 BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

4.1 General Overview and History
4.1.1 Introduction

Solid Clouds is a game developer with focus on creating a technology framework for the fast production of
massively multiplayer online real time strategy (MMORTS?) games. The company can rapidly adjust to changing
market demand and consumer preference by producing new games from a robust framework that allows for fine
tuning of game mechanics to maximize both retention and player spending. The Company launched its first game
in 2020, Starborne: Sovereign Space and by building on its foundation, Solid Clouds aims to become a leading
producer of MMORTS games.

Its first game, Starborne: Sovereign Space, is set in the distant future and features warring factions in a space opera
setting. The game world features deep lore and backstory to the factions and characters. The Starborne brand is an
umbrella that encompasses Solid Clouds’ first game, Sovereign Space and its second game, Frontiers, set to launch
in mid-year 2022. The Starborne brand Frontiers can be extended in a multitude of different directions.

Solid Clouds’ first game, Starborne: Sovereign Space, is a 4X strategy MMO? where the player takes on the role
of a space commander to compete against hundreds of other players over control of the galaxy. Each game lasts
for several weeks, and the game has about 20.000 monthly active users despite limited advertising.

Solid Clouds’ next launch is named Starborne: Frontiers.It is a persistent space MMO that takes place in the
Starborne Universe. Players will build bases, collect units, explore the galaxy and team up with other players to
take on its largest threats. The emphasis is on rewarding space fleet collection, progression and strategy in a
visually stunning universe.

412  History
Solid Clouds was founded in 2013 by Stefan Gunnarsson (CEO), Stefan Bjornsson (CFO) and Sigurdur

Arnljétsson with the intent of producing Starborne: Sovereign Space. Several of the CCP early investors took
stake in Solid Clouds and the firm secured the talents of several of CCP employees early on.

Year Events in Solid Clouds’ history
2013 Solid Clouds founded in Q4.
2015 First prototype of Starborne: Sovereign Space ready (Alpha 1).
10" employee hired.
2016 Full production starts on Starborne: Sovereign Space.
2018 Alpha 7 test on Starborne: Sovereign Space with first sales in game, 5,000 players joined the
game.
2020 Over 400,000 emails registered of users interested in Solid Clouds’ games.
Starborne: Sovereign Space launched.
2021 January 2021, development of Starborne: Frontiers starts.
Estimated launch of Starborne: Frontiers in mid-year 2022 18 months from concept to market,
2022 - - \ L .
underlines Solid Clouds’ competence and use of existing technological stack.

4.1.3  Company structure

The Company carries all its business and operations in the same corporate entity. The Company has one subsidiary,
Solid Clouds Ltd. in the UK. The subsidiary was created for a grant application regarding the Innovative UK fund.
There are no assets or liabilities or operation currently in the subsidiary. The Company is not a shareholder,
member or otherwise affiliated with other business entities.

2 Massively multiplayer online real-time strategy game (MMORTS) mixes the genres of real-time strategy and massively multiplayer online games in which a
very large number of players interact with one another within a virtual world. Players often assume the role of a warlord, general, king, or other type of figurehead
leading an army into battle while maintaining the resources needed for such warfare.

224X (abbreviation of eXplore, eXpand, eXploit, and eXterminate) are a subgenre of strategy-based games. The gameplay involves building an empire. Emphasis
is placed upon economic and technological development, as well as a range of military to non-military routes to supremacy.
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The Company has, and intends to maintain, a lean and efficient delegation of authority and responsibilities.
Shareholder’s meeting yields the supreme powers in the Company. The Board of Directors consists of CEO and
CFO who are responsible for the business of the Company between shareholder’s meetings. A management team
consisting of the CEO, CFO and three managers is responsible for the day-to-day business.

The Company’s business plan is to focus on its core business, therefore the Company intends to rely on third party
service providers by using outsourcing. This applies, for example, to software solutions, legal counsel as well as
the compliance officer.

414  Organization

The Issuer’s organizational chart can be seen below in Figure 5. In June 2021 the Company employed 17 full-time
employees.

Figure 5: The Company’s organization chart.

Board of Directors

CFO CEO
Stefan Bjornsson Stefan Gunnarsson

Tech Lead Producer ~Art Director
Marin6 Vilhjalmsson Egill Orn Sigurjénsson Agust Freyr Kristinsson

4.1.5 Significant contracts

The Company deems the following contracts as being material for its business:

The Company has a contract with Adyen, a Dutch payment company that allows Solid Clouds to accept electronic
payments by payment methods including credit cards, bank-based payments such as debit cards, bank transfer and
real-time bank transfers based on online banking. Adyen's online payment platform connects Solid Clouds to
payment methods across the world. The Company has a contract with Microsoft regarding the Azure cloud
computing service created by Microsoft for building, testing, deploying, and managing applications and services
through Microsoft-managed data centers. The Company has a vendor agreement with Unity Technologies
regarding licensing agreement for Unity’s cross-platform game engine.

4.1.6  Legal proceedings

From time to time, the Company may become involved in litigation, disputes and other legal proceedings arising
in the course of its business. As of the date of this Company Description, the Company is not, nor has been since
its incorporation involved in any legal, governmental or arbitration proceedings which may have, or have had in
the recent past, significant effects on its financial position or profitability. The Company is not aware of any such
proceedings which are pending or threatened.

4.2  Business model

Solid Clouds’ business model is based on the “free-to-play” business model. The model allows the player to install
the game for free, however, revenues come from selling players additional items and in game currency. Solid
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Clouds aim is to convert around 3% of new players into paying users and cultivate a loyal user base with continued
engagement to maximize the lifetime value of the players. Monetization of players is measured in ARPDAU,
which stands for average revenue per daily active user and ARPPU which stands for Average Revenue Per Paying
User per month. Solid Clouds achieved about $0.25 ARPDAU in the last two Alpha tests of Starborne: Sovereign
Space, but the Company was able to increase the ARPDAU to about $0.5-0.6 in the Beta test by fine tuning the
game mechanics and monetization scheme. The Company was limited in its revenue generation by the competitive
nature of Sovereign Space that had a negative impact on the monetization. Development of Frontiers will take
these limitations into account by having players setting their own goals and thus allowing for a more flexible
monetization strategy. Currently the majority of the revenue of the computer game industry is generated through
this revenue model.

Figure 6: Solid Clouds’ development process

Release Release
Review Plan
Weeks
Player Feature
Tests Design

Incremental
Build

Solid Clouds’ business strategy revolves around being able to produce new products on a regular basis, to achieve
this the Company utilizes its tech foundation to speed up production which will lessen development risk since
many of the underlying systems are tried and tested, ready to use for all future titles. The tech foundation is an
umbrella term for the systems and technologies required to develop and maintain a Massively Multiplayer Online
Game. These systems include custom-made server architecture to facilitate global & cross-platform play, User
Interface frameworks, Payment System integrations, and game-mechanic implementation frameworks.
Developing a tech foundation generally takes a large portion of the overall game development time. Solid Clouds
has developed a reusable framework and will build on this foundation when creating new products.

Each new product will add to this tech foundation making it more versatile with each release. Faster development
times allow us to keep up with market trends and keep the production teams focused.

Solid Clouds benefits from an established in-house production pipeline that has been used to develop and maintain
Starborne: Sovereign Space. The production team fully embraces agile methodologies to rapidly iterate on
concepts and utilizes real world player testing to influence key decision making. All major disciplines have full
on-site production teams. Upon development and release of new games in the future, Solid Clouds will typically
release a closed alpha and then beta version to evaluate the interest and retention. By use of the “free-to-play”
model, instant feedback from users is provided, and Solid Clouds receives advantageous information about
customers behaviour.

Solid Clouds is a data driven company that constantly applies analytics to adjust and optimize both new player
experience, monetization and user engagement. The intention is to understand and target its audiences more
effectively and maximize efficiencies across the Board. This will entail further development of the games in order
to support the engagement of its customers.

4.2.1 Influential factors

The amount of potential revenue to be earned from a game is dependent on two main factors. These two factors,
engagement and user acquisition spend, will decide how much a player will spend in or on a computer game. Solid
Clouds’ plan is to successfully engage players with the intention of maximizing the lifetime value (LTV) of players
along with keeping advertising costs as low as possible. The game developer aims to gain traction among players
in a specific genre (hero collection, role playing games) that are more likely to spend well above the average
ARPDAU.
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4211 Engagement

Player engagement stands for the desire to continue playing the game for more than one session and/or for a longer
period. To be successful game developers need to have the ability to engage players over time. Game developers
that engage their players for longer are more likely to generate higher revenues, either directly through in-app
purchases or indirectly though advertisements. In terms of advertising revenue, the audience for a game tends to
dictate how much you earn from advertising. In-app purchases tend to account for a higher proportion of the overall
revenue from a game.

4.2.1.2  User acquisition spend

User acquisition spend is the money used to attract and encourage players to download the game. Solid Clouds
will mostly rely on paid advertising, public relations, search engine optimization and influencer marketing to
acquire customers. To convert an acquired player to a spender the game must be engaging enough. How the game
developer deploys the capital for marketing will impact its ability to acquire new customers. If the average LTV
per customer is greater than the cost to acquired customer then the game is profitable.

18



S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

5.1 Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association, which were valid on the date that this Company Description was issued,
were accepted on 7™ of June 2021 and are replicated in full in their agreed form in Appendix |.

5.2 Board of Directors

Solid Clouds’ board of directors consists of five main members and three alternate members elected at an Annual
General Meeting. Main members and alternate members are elected for a period of one year.

The following individuals were elected to serve on the Board of Directors at the last Annual General Meeting, held
on 14 May 2021:

Sigurlina V. Ingvarsdottir, Chairman

Sigurlina V. Ingvarsdéttir was first elected to the Board in May 2021. She has extensive experience in the field of
game development. She worked for Bonfire Studios Inc., held a lead position at EA Sports FIFA and served as the
senior producer of the Star Wars Battlefront franchise at DICE. Before that she held management positions at
numerous companies, including CCP. Sigurlina currently sits on the Board of a few companies, including CRI hf.,
Aldin Dynamics and Eyrir Voxtur.

Sigurlina does not own shares in Solid Clouds and is an independent Board member in accordance with the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance, 5th edition, published in 2015 by the Iceland Chamber of Commerce,
Nasdagq OMX Iceland and SA Confederation of Icelandic Enterprise.

Sigurlina holds a B.Sc. degree in Industrial Engineering from the University of Iceland.

Olafur Andri Ragnarsson, Vice Chairman

Olafur Andri Ragnarsson was first elected to the Board in February 2014. Olafur holds an Adjunct position in the
School of Computer Science at Reykjavik University. Olafur founded Margmidlun, internet service provider and
software development company. He later founded Betware, a technical vendor in the lottery industry and was the
Chief Software Architect, additionally Olafur took part in developing the platform used by the company to
successfully launch digital solutions of several lotteries around the world. Olafur has also worked in Architect and
Business Development at BusinessBlock. Olafur Andri was one of the founders of Raw Fury AB a Swedish game
publisher and sits on the Board of the company. He is also a board member of Spectaflow ehf., British retail
software company, Aha Retail Partners Ltd. and Klambratin ehf.

Qlafur owns shares in Solid Clouds through his own account and through his holding company, Klambratun ehf.
Olafur holds directly 986,366 shares or a 0.78% stake and Klambratin ehf., which Olafur owns fully, holds
121,774 shares or a 0.10% stake.

Olafur holds a B.Sc. and M.Sc. degree in Computer Science from the University of Oregon.

Eggert Arni Gislason, Board member

Eggert Arni Gislason was first elected to the Board in May 2020. Since 1988, Eggert has been the General Manager
at Mata hf. He currently serves as Chairman of Board at Matfugl ehf., Salathlsid ehf., Sild og Fiskur ehf., &
islenska fjallatrukkafélagi ehf. Eggert sits on the Board of numerous companies, including Eignarhaldsfélagid
Mata hf., Langisjor ehf., Brimgardar ehf., Sundagardar hf., & Mata ehf.

Eggert owns shares in Solid Clouds both directly and indirectly through related parties a total of 3,650,307 shares
or a 2.89% stake. He also owns shares through his holding company, Brimgardar ehf., which owns 2,087,547
shares or a 1.65% stake in Solid Clouds.

Eggert holds a Cand.oecon. degree in Business from the University of Iceland and the IMC Securities Trading
Certificate.
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Gudmundur Ingi Jénsson, Board member

Gudmundur Ingi Jénsson was first elected to the Board in January 2018. Guomundur has been the General
Manager at Kjolur Fjarfestingafélag ehf. since 1999. He also holds the position of a Manager at islensk
Orkuvirkjun Seydisfirdi (2008-Present). Gudmundur sits on the Board of numerous companies, including
Midbzjareignir ehf., Kjolur fasteignir ehf., islandsapdtek ehf. and is the Chairman of the Board in YaY ehf.
Gudmundur previously served as the Chairman of Board at GreenQloud.

Guomundur owns shares in Solid Clouds through his own account and his entities, Kjolur fjarfestingarfélag ehf.
and GJ Invest ehf. He holds a direct 0.37% stake in Solid Clouds, a total of 463,899 shares. Gudmundur owns 50%
of Kjolur fjarfestingarfélag ehf., which owns 12,226,412 shares or a 9.69% stake in Solid Clouds. GJ Invest ehf.,
of which Gudmundur owns the entire share capital, owns 463,899 shares or a 0.37% stake in Solid Clouds.

Guomundur holds a B.Sc. degree in Economics from the University of Iceland.

Svanhvit Fridriksdottir, Board member

Svanhvit Fridriksdottir was first elected to the Board in August 2017. Since 2019 Svanhvit has worked as a public
relations consultant but before that she was the SVP of communication and marketing at WOW air. She currently
serves as a board member at Ankra ehf. Svanhvit has extensive experience in public relations.

Svanhvit does not own shares in Solid Clouds and is an independent board member in accordance with the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance, 5th edition, published in 2015 by the Iceland Chamber of Commerce,
Nasdag OMX Iceland and SA Confederation of Icelandic Enterprise.

Svanhvit holds a M.A. degree in Public Relations and Public Communications from University of Westminster
and a B.A. degree in History and Business from University of Iceland.

Heimir borsteinsson, Alternate board member

Heimir porsteinsson previously served as a board member at Solid Clouds. He currently serves as VP of Finance
at Alvogen. Previously Heimir served as VP of Finance at Teva Pharmaceuticals for 11 years. He has extensive
experience in auditing after working for Deloitte both in Iceland and Denmark.

Heimir owns a total of 239,952 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 0.19% stake in Solid Clouds.

Heimir holds a Cand. Oecon degree in Accounting and Auditing from the University of Iceland. He is also a State
Authorised Accountant from the Institute of State Authorised Accountants in Iceland.

Arsall Valfells, Alternate board member

Arszll Valfells was elected as an alternate board member at Solid Clouds in August 2020. He currently serves as
aboard member at Vesturgardur ehf. & Sikta ehf. Arszll is also the Chairman of the Board at Kaduseus ehf. Arsell
has held the position of lecturer at the University of Iceland since 2003, in addition to other positions related to
investments and asset management.

Arszll owns directly a total of 474,337 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 0.38% stake in Solid Clouds.

Arszll has a B.Sc. degree in Political Philosophy and M.Sc. in ADMIS from the London School of Economics
and Political science.

borlakur Traustason, Alternate board member

porldkur Traustason has been an alternate board member since January 2018. He currently serves as a board
member at Kjolur fasteignir ehf., Sudurorka ehf., and Yay ehf.

porlakur owns shares in Solid Clouds through his entity Kjolur Fjarfestingarfélag ehf. which holds 12,226,412
shares or a 9.69% stake in Solid Clouds. borlakur owns 50% of Kjolur Fjarfestingarfélag ehf.
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5.3 Management team

Stefan Gunnarsson, Chief Executive Officer

Stefan is the Co-Founder and CEO of Solid Clouds. In recent years, Stefan’s focus has been on the gaming industry,
both as a professional gamer as well as an investor, e.g. being on the first investors in CCP. Prior to that, Stefan
was an experienced mechanic before completing his education in computer science and founding Solid Clouds.

Stefan directly owns a total of 19,081,567 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 15.12% stake. He also owns 21.1% stake
in Eignarhaldsfélagio CHOAM ehf. that owns 1,971,572 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 1.56% stake in Solid Clouds.

Stefan holds a B.Sc. degree in Computer Science from the University of Reykjavik.

Stefan bor Bjornsson, Chief Financial Officer

Stefan is the CFO and co-founder of Solid Clouds. Stefan has been the CFO since 2018. Previously, Stefan was
the Chief Credit Analyst at the Financial Supervisory Authority of Iceland (FSA) for 10 years and has furthermore
been the Chairman of a joint credit risk analysis group of FSA & the Central Bank of Iceland for five years.

Stefan owns a total of 6,247,389 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 4.95% stake in Solid Clouds. He also owns 27.7%
stake in Eignarhaldsfélagio CHOAM ehf. that owns 1,971,572 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 1.56% stake.

Stefan holds a M.Sc. degree in Corporate Finance from the University of Iceland and a B.A. degree in history and
business.

Mariné Vilhjalmsson, Technical Lead

Marind has been with Solid Clouds since 2019. Marind was a backend programmer at Lumenox games for three
years. Before Lumenox Games, Marind worked as a Software developer at Gluggagerdin for six years and as a
teaching assistant for two years at the School of Computer Science at Reykjavik University.

Marind does not own shares in Solid Clouds.

Mariné holds a B.Sc. degree in Computer Science from the University of Reykjavik.

Egill Sigurjénsson, Producer

Egill has been with Solid Clouds since 2017. Before he joined Solid Clouds, Egill co-founded Convex games for
two years. Previously Egill worked as a Business analyst at Jagex for one year.

Egill does not own shares in Solid Clouds.

Egill holds an MBA from University of Cambridge and a B.Sc. degree in Computer Science from the University
of Reykjavik.

Agust Freyr Kristinsson, Art Director

Agust joined Solid Clouds in 2020. He worked as a freelance digital artist for three years before joining Solid
Clouds. Previously Agust worked as an Art director at Lumenox Games for five years and as a C.G. Artist at
CAOZ for one year. Agust worked as a freelance artist for two years at various companies.

Agust owns a total of 99,390 shares in Solid Clouds, or a 0.08% stake.
Agust holds a B.A. degree in Animation from the Workshop Drawing Academy.

5.4  Share-based incentive program
The Company has in place a share-based incentive program in the form of option rights. Option agreements have
been made with several key employees and contractors, as well as several agreements with former employees. The

purpose of a long-term share-based incentive program is to align the interest of employees with the long-term
goals of the Company and its shareholders.
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In the beginning of 2021 issued options were 39,555 shares to employees and contractors. Due to approximately
1:58 share split in the first half of 2021 the options owned by employees multiply and the strike price is lowered,
this adjustment is not material for the employees which are no better or worse off than in the beginning of the year.

As of the date of this Company Description, key employees and several former employees as well as contractors
have, after the stock split adjustments, options to purchase 7,664,759 shares in the Company. The shares vest
evenly in 24-48 months (dilution effect of 5.7%).%

These options were granted in the period between 2015 and 2021 and expire in the period of June 2021 until June
2025. The average strike price per share of these options, after the stock split adjustments, amounts to ISK 10.7
per share.

The Board of Directors has the authority to issue options for additional 1,149,241 shares (not yet issued) for
employees, or 0.9% additional dilution effect. In total, The Board of Directors has the authority to issue 8,814,000
shares or 6.5% dilution effect of total issued shares at the date of the Company Description.

The following table shows the employee stock options as of the date of the Company Description:

No shares | Dilution effect | Average strike price
Granted stock options 7,664,759 5.7% 10,7
Stock options available for distribution (but not yet 1,149,241 0.9% n/a
distributed)
Total 8,814,000 6.5% n/a

5.5 Potential conflict of interests and related party transactions

The Company has entered into the following agreements with related parties:

Rental agreements for office space and an apartment with Vivaldi Island ehf. and Dworzak Island ehf. in the
ownership of Jon von Techner. Jon through Vivaldi owns 30,250 shares in Solid Clouds or a 1.39% stake in Solid
Clouds. The agreements are priced at market rate.

5.6 Involvement in bankruptcy, liquidation or fraud related convictions

During the period of the last five years preceding the date of this Company Description, no member of the Board
of Directors or the Management Team has been convicted of a fraudulent offence. No member of the Board of
Directors or the Management team have been subject to any official public incrimination and/or sanctions by any
statutory or regulatory authorities (including designated professional bodies) or ever been disqualified by a court
from acting as a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a company or from acting in
the management or conduct of the affairs of any company.

Eggert was a board member of Bilanaust ehf. which was declared bankrupt in 2019. Neither members of the Board
nor the Management Team have, in the past five years, been associated with companies, in their capacity as a
founder, director, or senior manager, which have filed for bankruptcy or gone into receivership or liquidation.

2 Of the granted options 579,636 options have contractual automatic adjustment as in regard of a stock split. However, for other granted options, the Company has
yet to prepare an annex to the option agreements in respect to the effect of the stock split.
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5.7 Share capital and shareholders

The share capital of Solid Clouds at the date of this Company Description is ISK 126,198,626. The share capital
is divided into shares of nominal value ISK 1, or a multiple of the amount shareholders hold in the Company in
each instance. There are no restrictions on shareholders’ rights to dispose of their shares in the company. For
further information on the Company’s shares, a reference is made to Solid Clouds” Articles of Association which
can be found in Appendix I.

The shares of the Company are registered electronically at Nasdaq CSD Iceland hf. in accordance with the
Icelandic Act on Electronic registration of rights of title to securities No. 131/1997. The ISIN number for the shares
is 1IS0000033173.

At the date of this Company Description, Solid Clouds’ shareholders are 175, and the largest shareholder is Stefan
Gunnarsson with a 15.12% share. Below is a list of the top 20 shareholders in the Company as of 21 June 2021.

Shareholder Number of shares %
1 Stefan Gunnarsson 19,081,567 15.12%
2 Kjolur fjarfestingarfélag ehf. 12,226,412 9.69%
3 Sigurdur Arnljétsson 7,597,046 6.02%
4 Stefan por Bjornsson 6,247,389 4.95%
5 Tomas Sigurdsson 3,820,790 3.03%
6 Vilano Capital 3,189,307 2.53%
7 Daniel Sigurdsson 3,106,327 2.46%
8 S9ehf 2,777,597 2.20%
9 Silfurberg ehf. 2,381,543 1.89%
10 Brimgardar ehf. 2,087,547 1.65%
11 Karl J.Karlsson 2,070,904 1.64%
12 Eggert Ami Gislason 2,026,660 1.61%
13 Brekkubyggd ehf. 1,976,617 1.57%
14 Eignarhaldsfélagid CHOAM ehf 24 1,971,572 1.56%
15 Vivaldi island ehf. 1,754,119 1.39%
16 Petra Bragadottir 1,623,647 1.29%
17 Adalsteinn Haukur Sverrisson 1,561,891 1.24%
18 Sisu Game Ventures oy 1,471,894 117%
19 Jardefnaidnadur hf. 1,471,720 1.17%
20 Arnar borisson 1,023,478 0.81%
21 Others 46,730,599 37.01%

Total 126,198,626 100%%

5.8  Share increase allowances

Pursuant to article 4 in the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is authorized to increase the
share capital of the Company by up to a total of ISK 66,814,000, thereof share-based option agreements count for
8,814,000 shares.

24 Stefan Gunnarsson (CEO) owns 21.1% share in Eignarhaldsfélagid CHOAM ehf. and Stefan p6r Bjornsson (CFO) owns 27.7% share in Eignarhaldsfélagid
CHOAM ehf.
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The Board of Directors has the authority to increase the share capital by up to ISK 58,000,000. The authorization
is in effect until 31 December 2021. On the date of this Company Description, no part of this authorization has
been utilized.

For the purposes of this authorization, the Board of Directors is authorized to decide or negotiate the Offering price
and other terms of subscription for the Shares. Current shareholders have waived their priority rights of
subscription to new shares in relation to this authorization.

In addition to the foregoing authorizations, the Board of Directors has the authority to increase the share capital
by up to ISK 8,814,000 for the purposes of honouring the Company”s commitments pursuant to share-based option
agreements entered into with the Company’s employees and contractors. The Board of Directors is authorized to
negotiate and decide the purchase price for new shares. Current shareholders have waived their priority rights of
subscription to new shares in relation to this authorization.

5.9  Share ownership by stakeholders

The following lists the shareholdings of members of the Board of Directors, employees and Certified Adviser at
the date of this Company Description. The list includes holding entities in which the relevant stakeholder is a
shareholder, directly or indirectly through other entities.

Stakeholder Role Holding entity / Number of % Granted
Related party shares options
Sigurlina V. Ingvarsdoéttir  Chairman of the Board 0 347,921%
Olafur Andri Ragnarsson  Board member Klambrat(n ehf.? 1,108,139 0.9% 0
Eggert Arni Gislason Board member Eﬁ?gi:g%?i?}t;_ir & 5,737,854  4.6% 0
Kjolur
Gudmundur Ingi Jonsson  Board member fjarfestingarfélag enf. 13,154,211 10.4% 0
& GJ Invest ehf.?’
Svanhvit Fridriksdottir Board member 0 0
Heimir Porsteinsson Alternate board member 239,952  0.2% 0
Arsell Valfells Alternate board member 474,337  0.4% 0
porlakur Traustason Alternate board member Eg?fls;tingarfélag ehf 28 12,226,412 9.69% 0
Stefén Gunnarsson CEO Eﬁga;ﬁ"g;‘;ﬂ?gia 21,053,139 16.7% 0
Stefan Por Bjornsson  CFO C e algste s 8218961 65% 1,449,671
Mariné Vilhjalmsson Technical Lead 0 1,723,676
Eqill Sigurjonsson Producer 0 2,029,539
Agust Freyr Kristinsson  Art Director 99,390 0.1% 723,676
Arion Bank hf. Certified Advisor 0 0
Total 62,312,395 5,274,483

The list includes holding entities in which the relevant stakeholder is a shareholder, directly or indirectly through
other entities, irrespective of whether it is a minority or majority shareholding. The number of shares represents
the total number of shares held by the relevant holding entity.

% Sigurlina has a share option agreement with the Company for 347,921 shares per year during her tenure.

% Olafur owns Klambrattn fully.

27 Gudmundur owns 50% of Kjolur fjarfestingar ehf. and 100% of GJ Invest ehf
28 porlakur owns 50% of Kjoélur fjarfestingar ehf.

2 Stefan owns 21.1% of Eignarhaldsfélagid CHOAM ehf.
30 Stefan owns 27.7% of Eignarhaldsfélagid CHOAM ehf.
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6 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

This section contains information on the Company’s income statement and balance sheet covering the financial
years 2019 and 2020. The Financial Statements of Solid Clouds are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting standards (IFRS). The Company is a software & video game developer and is classified as a
software company (62010) according to the ISAT 2008 standard.

The Company*s Financial Statements for 2020 and 2019 have been audited by Gaedaendurskodun and signed with
unmodified opinion. Following are the dates on which the Issuer intends to release its semi-annual and annual
reports following listing as well as the next annual general meeting. As per the First North Rulebook, going forward
the Issuer will publish a financial calendar prior to the start of each financial year. If any date specified in the
calendar changes, the Issuer will publish a notice of the new date as soon as possible.

Publication of unaudited semi-annual Financial Statements 26 August 2021
Publication of audited annual Financial Statements 30 March 2022
Annual General Meeting 20 April 2022

It is recommended that investors review Solid Clouds* annual accounts in their entirety, including all notes. The
section below shows numbers from annual accounts in extract format. The annual accounts for the last two
financial years are attached in Appendix II.

6.1 Working capital statement
It is the assessment of the management and Board of Directors, for and on behalf of the Company, that at the date

of this Company Description and the successful completion of the Offering the Company has sufficient working
capital to fulfil its requirements for at least the next 12 months.

6.2 Capitalisation and Indebtedness

The table below shows the capitalisation and indebtedness of the Company as of 30 April 2021:

Figures in 1SK '000 30 April 2020
Liabilities

Rental liabilities 12,369
Accounts payable 1,530
Pre-collected revenues 395
Debt to related parties® 2,900
Other short-term liabilities 18,916
Total liabilities 36,110
Equity

Common stock 2,108
Paid-in capital in excess of par 733,299
Reserved equity due to development cost 594,334
Call options 4,689
Retained earnings/(losses) (719,804)
Total equity 614,626
Equity and liabilities 650,736

31 Short term loan from shareholders which matured in May 2021
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6.3  Significant developments after 31 December 2020

The following significant events have occurred after 31 December 2020. After the end of last financial year
approximately 1ISK 43 million in new share capital was raised from a Polish investor, Dr. Krzysztof Rosinski and
related parties. The Company regularly launches new Sovereign Space game servers, but marketing efforts have
been put on hold. The main Company focus is on developing Frontiers which is scheduled to release mid-year
2022 on both mobile and PC. Operating expenses for the first 5 months amounted to approximately 1SK 100
million. The Company can have an impact on its operating expenses by adjusting the pace of development. Cash
and cash equivalents at the end of May amounted to approximately ISK 17 million. The Company is expecting to
receive up to ISK 92 million in R&D tax credits in October for the financial year 2020. The Company’s commercial
bank has agreed to grant a revolving facility to Solid Clouds with 90% collateralization rate. The collateral for the
revolving facility is the expected reimbursement for research and development costs payable from the Icelandic
Revenue and Customs in 2022 for R&D in 2021.

6.4 Summary of financial development

This section contains information on Solid Clouds’ income statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement
covering the financial years 2019 and 2020.

For a complete overview of Solid Clouds’ financial position, it is recommended that investors review Solid Clouds’
Annual Financial Statements, including all notes. The section below summarizes figures from them most recent
Annual Financial Statements.

6.4.1  Income Statement
The Company ‘s income statement for the years 2019-2020 can be found in the table below. Both years have been

adopted to IFRS standards and are therefore comparable. It should be noted that the previous year, 2019, has not
been audited.

Figures in 1SK '000 2020 2019
Operating revenues 63,769 21,437
Grants VSMT and R&D tax credits 56,676 64,192
Capitalized development cost (51,008) (85,628)
Total revenues 69,436 0
Development cost 82,015 49,939
Salaries and related expenditures 137,918 130,015
Office and management related expenditures 68,952 62,520
Marketing & advertisements 0 0
Other operating expenses 0 0
Capitalized development costs (228,418) (210,443)
Total expenses 60,467 32,030
Depreciation of development cost (27,050) 0
Depreciation of properties (5,871) (5,758)
EBIT (23,952) (37,788)
Interest revenue 448 2,564
Interest expenses (1,034) (1,290)
Currency exchange 1,865 3)
Net interest income 1,279 1,371
Net profit/loss for the year before tax (22,673) (36,417)
Income tax 32,318 0
Net profit/loss for the year after tax 9,644 (36,417)
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According to the Company‘s financial statement Solid Clouds’ revenues from sales of virtual goods increased
between years, to ISK 63.8 million 2020 (2019: ISK 21.4 million). Revenues come from selling players additional
items and in game currency in the Company°s first game, Starborne: Sovereign Space. The game is free-to-play
but generates revenues from purchases in play. Grants and tax credits amounted to ISK 56.7 million 2020 (2019:
ISK 64.2 million). Reversal of capitalized development cost lowered Solid Clouds’ revenues resulting in total
revenues of ISK 69.4 million 2020 (2019: ISK 0).

Operating expenses nearly doubled between the aforementioned years, to ISK 60.5 million 2020 (2019: ISK 32
million). Low operating expenses are due to significant capitalization of development cost: ISK 228.4 million 2020
(2019: ISK 210.4 million). Most of Solid Clouds’ expenses are related to the development of the free-to-play game
Starborne: Frontiers, that will be released in 2022.

Profit for the year 2020 amounted to ISK 9.6 million (2019: Loss of ISK 36.4 million).
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6.4.2 Balance Sheet

The table below shows the balance sheet at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. As stated before both years
have been adopted to IFRS standards and are therefore comparable.

Figures in 1SK '000 2020 2019
Assets

Capitalized development costs 545,677 395,317
Rental properties 13,428 18,795
Income tax credit 32,318 0
Total fixed assets 591,423 414,112
Receivables 1,305 0
Other receivables 6,466 28,723
Cash and cash equivalents 58,963 113,737
Total current assets 66,734 142,460
Total assets 658,157 556,573
Rental liabilities 8,942 13,5625
Total long-term liabilities 8,942 13,525
Rental liabilities 5,088 5,703
Accounts payable 405 1,994
Pre-collected revenues 395 0
Debt to related parties 200 214
Other short-term liabilities 9,309 12,815
Total current liabilities 15,396 20,727
Total liabilities 24,338 34,252
Common stock 2,108 1,948
Paid-in capital in excess 733,299 634,259
Reserved equity due to development cost 545,677 395,317
Call options 4,689 2,035
Retained earnings/(losses) (651,954) (511,239)
Total equity 633,819 522,321
Equity and liabilities 658,157 556,573

Fixed assets of Solid Clouds’ consist primarily of capitalized development costs related to the development of the
Company’s games and related platforms. Capitalized development costs amounted to ISK 545.7 million in 2020
and increased from ISK 395.3 million in 2019. The Company leases its office and accounts for its right of use of
ISK 13.4 million in 2020. In year end 2020 the balance sheet of the Company included an income tax credit of
ISK 32.3 million related to deferred tax assets and its R&D costs as further outlined in note 8 of the Company’s
2020 financial statement.

Current assets of the Company amounted to 1ISK 66.7 million in 2020 compared to ISK 142.5 million in 2019.
Cash and cash equivalents are the majority of Solid Clouds’ current assets and the reduction in the year 2020 was
due to the investment and capitalization of the Company’s development process.

Long-term liabilities amounted to ISK 8.9 million in 2020 compared to ISK 13.5 million in 2019 and are lease
liabilities due to its office. Current liabilities reduced from ISK 20.7 million in 2019 to ISK 15.4 million and
consisted mainly of a lease liability and other liabilities.
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Solid Clouds’ equity amounted to ISK 633.8 million at year end 2020 compared to ISK 522.3 million in 2019 and
the increase is related to share capital increases during the period. Reference on significant development post the
financial period is made to chapter 6.3 Significant developments after 31 December 2020.
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6.4.3  Statement of Cash Flow

The table below shows the statement of cash flow at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. As stated before

both years have been adopted to IFRS standards and are therefore comparable.

Figures in 1SK '000 2020 2019
Operating activities

Net income (loss) (23,952) (37,788)
Operating items not affecting cash flow

Depreciation of development cost 27,050 0
Depreciation of rental properties 5,871 5.758
Cost of option agreements 2,654 593
Turnover funds from operations 11,623 (31,437)
Change in operating assets 20,952 (22,845)
Change in operational debt (4,701) 2,782
Net cash from operating activities before interest 27,874 (51,500)
Received interest 448 2,564
Paid interest (1,034) (1,190)
Net cash from operating activities 27,288 (50,126)
Investment activities

Capitalized development cost (177,410) (124,815)
Investment activities (177,410) (124,815)
Financing activities

Paid in capital 99,200 198,400
Payment of rental debt (5,703) (5,325)
Change in other short term debt (14) (173)
Financing activities 93,483 192,902
Change in net cash (56,639) 17,961
Net cash in beginning of the year 113,737 95,778
Impact of currency exchange 1,865 3
Net cash in year end 58,963 113,737

Net cash from operating activities amounted to ISK 27.3 million in the year 2020 compared to net cash to operating
activities amounting to ISK 50.1 million in 2019. Investment activities are related to capitalized development costs
and amounted to ISK 177.4 million in 2020 compared to ISK 124.8 million in 2019. Financing activities in 2020
amounted to ISK 93.5 million of which ISK 99.2 million was paid in capital and payment of rental debt amounting

to ISK 5.7 million.

Net cash at the beginning of the year 2020 amounted to ISK 113.7 million and decreased to ISK 59.0 million at
year end 2020. Reference on significant development post the financial period is made to chapter 6.3 Significant

developments after 31 December 2020.
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6.5 Projected financials

The table below sets forth financial projections for the next three years. The Company has made financial
projections for the years 2021, 2022 and 2023. The presented projected financials are, in the opinion of Solid
Clouds’ management, a potential scenario for what the Company's operations might look like in the coming years
and should not be interpreted as Solid Clouds’ future earnings forecast. Forward-looking statements are provided
to allow potential investors the opportunity to understand management’s beliefs and opinions in respect of the
future so that they may use such beliefs and opinions as one factor in evaluating an investment. These statements
are not guarantees of future performance and undue reliance should not be placed on them. The actual financials
in coming years could prove to be significantly different and are highly dependent upon various items, e.g.
successful launch of the Company’s upcoming game, the Company’s ability to attract and reach its target for daily
active users and successfully being able to monetize their customers. These factors will be affected by the market
environment, marketing activities, competition and other risk factors detailed in Section 2 of this Company
Description amongst other things. Although forward-looking statements contained in this presentation are based
on what management of the Company believes are reasonable assumptions, there can be no assurance that forward-
looking statements will prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those
anticipated in such statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements if
circumstances or management’s estimates or opinions should change except as required by applicable securities
laws and regulations. The reader is cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

In million ISK 2022E 2023E

2021E Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4FY 2022E Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY 2023E
Revenue 109 10 294 543 750 1.597 916 1.037 1.175 1.251 4.379
EBIT (151) (91) (18) 71 209 170 134 175 212 604 1.125

The Company will finance itself with the proceeds from the Offering until the Company expects to generate profit,
which is expected to be Q4 2022.

The revenue assumptions are based on management experience from its previous launch of Starborne: Sovereign
Space along with its ambitions to being more successful in its marketing towards its potential customers. In the
Company’s previous launch, it learned valuable lessons, e.g. in designing gameplay, retention and monetization
and on that foundation, Solid Clouds estimates to increase its ARPDAU from $0.6 with its current Starborne:
Sovereign Space in 2021 to $1.6 in Q3 2022 and to reach 1.8 in Q1 2023. These forecasts are based on the
experience of running Starborne: Sovereign Space and by careful market study of the top performing games in the
genre. According to Game Analytics Mobile Gaming Benchmarks, there are two game genres that stand out most
when it comes to average ARPDAU values (1) Role Playing and (2) Strategy games. For the top 2% of games in
these two sectors the ARPDAU value is between $2.5-3.3. That is on average 5-7x more than the standard for
other genres.? With Solid Clouds catering to a specific genre (strategy, space, MMORTS) and having the game
quality well above the average game available it is likely that they will gain traction with a certain group.

Figure 7: Expected number of users in Frontiers
& expected average revenues per daily active user (ARPDAU in $)
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The Company has a limited operating history, is currently loss-making and is entering its growth phase. Business
plans and ramp-up schedule are not guaranteed to materialize and are subject to change. Starborne: Sovereign

32 Source: Udonis and Game Analytics Mobile Gaming Benchmarks.
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Space attracted over 400,000 interested parties and daily active users of 7,000 before the marketing effort was
scaled down. The company projects the number of daily active users to reach more than 50,000 players in 2023
for Starborne: Frontiers. Based on projected net operating income for the year 2021 amounts to a loss of ISK 151
million. Solid Clouds is expected to be profitable in 2022 and 2023 with a profit of ISK 170 million in 2022 and
1,125 million in 2023.
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7 INFORMATION CONCERNING THE OFFER SHARES

7.1  Type and class of the Shares

The Company only has one class of shares. An application has been submitted for the Offer Shares together with
the existing shares to be admitted to trading on Nasdaq First North Market Iceland under the ISIN 1S0000033173.
The Company’s LEI number is 984500CFI1140XDHS5D79.

7.2 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Shares are issued in accordance with Icelandic law. This Company Description has been prepared in
compliance with the rules issued by Nasdaq First North Market. Any disputes that may arise as a result of the
Offering is subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Icelandic courts.

7.3 Registration of Shares

The Shares are dematerialized and registered in book-entry form electronically with Nasdaq CSD Iceland. All
Shares are registered on account with account holding banks in Nasdaq CSD Iceland. Investors that are not
residents of Iceland may use an Icelandic bank directly or their own bank as their account-holding bank. All Shares
are registered in the name of the holder in the Company’s register of shareholders. The Company’s register of
shareholders is kept by Nasdag CSD Iceland.

7.4  Currency

The Shares are denominated in ISK (Icelandic Krona).

7.5 Rights attached to the Shares
7.5.1 Dividend rights

Payment of dividends is proposed by the Board of Directors and must be approved by the shareholders at a general
meeting (whether an annual general Meeting or an extraordinary general meeting). Dividends must be paid no
later than six months after the date of the general meeting at which such dividends were approved. As there are no
provisions in the Company ‘s articles of association regarding the expiration of the right to dividends that have not
been collected, such rights lapse after four years according to Act on Limitation of Claims No. 150/2007.

7.5.2  Voting rights

Annual General Meetings are held before the end of June each year. A legitimate shareholders’ meeting wields
the supreme authority of the affairs of the Company. One vote is attached to each Icelandic Krona of share capital,
and decisions at shareholders’ meetings are generally taken by majority vote. No voting rights are attached to the
Company’s own shares while held by the Company.

7.5.3  Pre-emption rights

An increase in the share capital of the Company may be authorised at a shareholders‘ meeting. Shareholders have
pre-emptive rights to an increase in the Company‘s share capital in proportion to their holdings of the Shares and
within the time limits specified in the resolution to increase the share capital. However, a meeting of shareholders
can, by a two-thirds majority vote, waive pre-emptive rights to increases of share capital, provided that the decision
does not entail discrimination between shareholders.

Pursuant to article 4 in the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is authorized to increase the
share capital of the Company by up to a total of ISK 66,814,000.

The Board of Directors has the authority to increase the share capital by up to ISK 58,000,000. The authorization
is in effect until 31 December 2021. On the date of this Company Description, no part of this authorization has
been utilized, but is expected to be utilized, in part or whole, in this offering. For the purposes of this authorization,
the Board of Directors is authorized to decide or negotiate the Offering price and other terms of subscription for
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the shares. Current shareholders have waived their priority rights of subscription to new shares in relation to this
authorization.

In addition to this, the Board of Directors of the Company has been authorised by the Company*s shareholders*
meeting to increase the share capital by ISK 8,814,000 in relation to the settlement of stock option agreements
made with the Company‘s employees and contractors and temporarily (until 31 December 2021). The Company‘s
shareholders have waived their pre-emptive rights in relation to share capital increases based on the Board of
Director‘s authorisations.

7.5.4  Dissolution and liquidation

Proposals for mergers, dissolutions and divisions of the Company are considered as amendments to the Company‘s
articles of association. The votes of shareholders who control at least 2/3 of the total share capital of the Company
are required for a decision to dissolve the Company. Upon liquidation of the Company, shareholders would be
entitled to receive proportionately any assets remaining after the payment of the Company‘s debt and taxes and
the expenses of the liquidation.

755 Redemption and conversion

No special rights are attached to shares in the Company. Shareholders do not have to be subject to redemption of

their shares unless otherwise provided by law. The Company has not issued redeemable shares, warrants or
convertible instruments

7.6  Negotiability of the Shares

The Company's shares are issued electronically in accordance with the provisions of Act on central securities
depositories, settlement and electronic registration of title to financial instruments no. 7/2020. No restrictions apply
to the pledging, sale or other transfer of shares in the Company.

8 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFERING

8.1 Expected timetable of the Offering

Date Event

28 June 2021 - 10:00 GMT The Offer Period beging

30 June 2021 - 16:00 GMT The Offer Period ends

1 July 2021 Allocation

6 July 2021 Payment

12 July 2021 Delivering of shares

12 July 2021 First day of trading on First North Iceland

8.2 Terms of the Offering

The Company is offering 40,000,000 new shares with the right to increase the Offering size of up to a total of
58,000,000 shares, based on the exemption of Article 3 of the Act on Prospectus to be published when securities
are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market no. 14/2020 and Regulation (EU) 2017/1129
on the same matter. The minimum subscription amount is a subscription order of ISK 100,000. No maximum
purchase amount applies to the Offering. However, the number of Offer shares is limited to the number of Shares
in the Offering. The offer price is fixed at ISK 12.5 per share.

The Offering is being made by way of:
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(i) Orderbook A%, for subscriptions amounting to ISK 100,000 and up to ISK 15,000,000; and
(if) Orderbook B, for subscriptions over the size of ISK 15,000,000.

8.2.1  Submission of Applicants to subscribe

Orders shall be registered electronically on a special-order form via the website of Arion Bank at
www.arion.is/solidclouds-utbod. Orders of Shares will not be accepted in any other format. The order form will
be available in Icelandic and English. In order to submit an order for Shares, investors have to register to the order
website, through any of the following user identification numbers:

1. electronic identification number on a smartphone;
2. user identification number to Arion Bank’s online bank;

3. identification number or password which was requested through the order website and will be sent as a
digital document to the investor’s online bank, which may be in any Icelandic retail bank; or

4. identification number and password which can be obtained from Arion Bank by signing a witnessed
application for a password or by any other method of verification which Arion Bank considers
satisfactory.

Electronic confirmation from the order website is required as valid proof of order or cancellation of order. Such
confirmation will appear at the end of the registration process and also sent to the e-mail address provided by the
investor.

Investors are entitled to change an order which they have confirmed and delivered on the order form in the Offering
during the Offer period, by submitting an additional order or cancelling an order already submitted. All orders that
have not been cancelled during the Offer period are binding for the respective investor at the end of the Offer
period.

Orders must be completed by the investors themselves or a person who has the required authority or power of
attorney from the investor. A person completing an order on the basis of power of attorney shall, should the power
of attorney not be recognised by the principal, be deemed to have delivered the order in his/her own name.

Participation in the Offering is open to persons (individuals as well as legal entities) with an Icelandic ID-number,
legally competent to manage their financial affairs and have the power to decide over their financial estate, with
restrictions that may be imposed by law.

The above conditions stipulate that if the person’s estate has been declared bankrupt and such proceedings have
not been completed before the end of the offer period, that person may not participate in the Offering. Persons who
are not otherwise legally competent to manage their financial affairs may not participate in the Offering.

By the order form investors must declare that they have agreed to the terms of the Offering as set out in this
Company Description, read the information in this Company Description, read and understood the information on
Arion Bank’s rules on conflicts of interest and confirm that their participation in the Offering does not violate
Icelandic law.

Financial institutions which offer asset management services pursuant to Article 3 (6.c) of Act No. 161/2002 on
Financial Undertakings are granted certain exemptions with respect to subscriptions. They are given the
opportunity to submit subscriptions on behalf of investors on a special subscription form which can be obtained
from Arion Bank. A precondition for such a subscription is that Arion Bank has received a satisfactory statement
from a financial institution, on a form that can be obtained from the Bank, stating that it has the required authority
or power of attorney from the investor in accordance with authority provided in a valid asset management
agreement with the investor and a statement saying that the financial institution guarantees the payment of the
purchase price. The financial institution shall specify in such subscriptions whether it wants to receive a bill for
the price paid by the investor or whether it wants the price paid to be deposited into the custody account of the
investor at Arion Bank. It is a precondition of the latter alternative that the investor has a custody account at Arion
Bank. Cancellation of subscriptions submitted by financial institutions as described above must be communicated
to Arion Bank by e-mail, solidclouds-utbod@arionbanki.is.

33 Individuals that participate in Orderbook A and subscribe for at least ISK 300,000, are applicable for tax deduction from their income tax and/or their capital tax
gains base of up to 75% of their investment. See more in chapter 1.6 Taxation Issues in Iceland
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Investors can obtain information on the Offering and the order website from Arion Bank at tel. +354 444-7000 or
solidclouds-uthod@arionbanki.is. Investors can obtain this information by phone or e-mail between 9:00 a.m. and
4:00 p.m. during the offer period.

8.2.2  Allocation

Allocation is expected to take place on or about 1 July 2021. Shortly thereafter, a notification will be sent to those
investors that have received allocation in the Offering. Those persons who have not been allotted shares will not
be notified. The information on allocation to participants and payment instructions regarding allocated shares will
be sent to the e-mail address specified by the investor in the order form. Investors are responsible for ensuring that
the e-mail address provided is valid and able to receive the necessary documentation. In the event of
oversubscription in the Offering, allocation may take place with a lower number of Offer Shares than the
application concerns, at which the sole discretion of the Company (which means that the Company or the Manager
are not obliged to reveal how the reduction or rejection was decided and the counterparty will not be given the
opportunity to object to the decision or its application). However, efforts will be made not to reduce subscriptions
below ISK 300,000.

8.2.3  Withdrawal of the Offering

Completion of the Offering is conditional upon the Offering not being withdrawn. The Offering may be withdrawn
by the Company at any time before the announcement of the result of the Offering takes place. The Offering may
also be withdrawn if Nasdaq Iceland is not satisfied that there will be a sufficient number of qualified shareholders
of the Offer Shares or if conditions for free float are not satisfied. Any withdrawal of the Offering will be
announced immediately with a press release. The Offering may be withdrawn if there are insufficient subscribers
for the Offer Shares.

8.2.4  Payment of the Offer shares

Payment will not be accepted by any other means than those stated in the above mentioned payment instructions
in chapter 8.2.2 Allocation. Full payment must be made no later than on final due date as stated in the payment
instructions, expected to be on 6 July 2021. Payment shall be made at the latest before the closing time of banks
in Iceland on the final due date. Note that the general opening hours of banks and other financial institutions is
until 4:00 p.m. GMT on weekdays and that after 4:15 p.m. GMT it is not possible to make a payment exceeding
ISK 10 million, however lower payments are possible via online banks until 9:00 p.m. GMT, provided that the
amount is below other limits which may apply. The Manager reserves the right to request investors for proof of
funds for any submitted order. Failure to provide sufficient proof of funds can result in the order being invalidated.
The Manager has sole discretion to decide whether confirmation of the ability to pay is sufficient. Sole discretion
means that the Manager will assess each confirmation separately and is not obliged to reveal how the decision was
made and the counterparty will not be given the opportunity to object to the decision or its application.

8.2.5  Registration of Allotted and Paid-up Offer Shares

Offer Shares will be delivered to the buyer when satisfactory payment has been received from the investor with
delivery taking place four business days after payment has been received, at the latest. Shares will be delivered
electronically via Nasdagq CSD Iceland. Arion Bank will request that the custodian the investor specifies in its
subscription deposits the Shares in a custody account held by the investor with the custodian. If the investor does
not own a custody account with the custodian specified in the subscription, Arion Bank will open a custody account
in the name of the investor at Arion Bank (and at the Nasdag CDS Iceland) so that it is possible to deposit the
investor’s Shares in a custody account in accordance with the above and the Bank reserves the right to collect a
fee from the investor for storing the Shares as per Arion Bank’s list of fees and charges, which can be found on its
website, https://www.arionbanki.is/english/about-us/more/rates/. The investor will not be able to trade or move the
Shares delivered into the custody account opened as described above in their name unless they have already
provided the material and information requested by Arion Bank to open a custody account.

8.2.6  Underwriting and Settlement

The Offering is not subject to any underwriting agreements. The Company has chosen Arion Bank to be the
settlement agent for the Offering.
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8.2.7  Admission to trading

The Shares are expected to be admitted to trading on Nasdaq First North Market Iceland. The admission, as well
as the continued admission to trading on Nasdaq First North Market Iceland, are subject to all admission
requirements set forth by First North Growth Market Rulebook.

8.2.8  Costs related to the Offering

The Company’s costs associated with the admission to trading on Nasdaq First North Market Iceland and the
Offering are expected to amount to approx. between ISK 39.500.000 and 68.000.000. Such costs primarily relate
to costs for auditors, financial and legal advisors, Nasdaq Iceland operating First North Market, and distribution
of this Company Description. Gross proceeds from the issuance of Offer Shares are expected to amount to between
ISK 500.000.000 and 725.000.000 before expenses connected with the Offering. After payment of these expenses,
the Company will receive net proceeds of approx. between ISK 476.000.000 and ISK 657.000.000.
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9 APPENDIX I - ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION

The following document is an English translation of Solid Clouds* Articles of Association, reviewed and approved
by the Company.
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Translated from the Icelandic

Articles of Association
for
Solid Clouds hf.

Name, venue and objective of the Company
Article 1
The Company is a public limited liability company (hlutafélag), and its name is Solid Clouds
hf.

Article 2
The Company’s venue is in Reykjavik.

Article 3
The Company’s objective is to engage in information technology, software development, the
production and marketing of computer games, wholesaling, retailing, the
purchase/sale/operation of real estate, credit activities and related operations.

Share capital of the Company
Article 4

The Company’s share capital is ISK 126,198,626 — one hundred and twenty-six million, one
hundred and ninety-eight thousand, six hundred and twenty-six Icelandic krénur. Each share
has a nominal value of one kréna (ISK 1). The board of the company may decide on an increase
of share capital of up to ISK 8,814,000 (nominal value) through the issue of new shares, in a
single increase or in stages. This authorisation may only be utilised in connection with the
honouring of stock option agreements with Company employees and contractors. Shareholders
shall not have any pre-emptive right to subscribe to shares issued under this authorisation. The
new shares shall confer rights in the Company from the date on which they are made over to
the employee or contractor under the conditions of the stock option agreement.

The board of the Company may decide on an increase of share capital of up to ISK 58,000,000
(nominal value) through the issue of new shares, in a single increase or in stages. This
authorisation shall be valid until 31 December 2021, on which date any part of it then unutilised
shall lapse. Shareholders shall not have any pre-emptive rights to subscribe to shares issued
under this authorisation. The new shares shall confer rights in the Company as from the date on
which they are registered.

Article 5
The Company’s share capital may be raised in accordance with the resolution of a shareholders’
meeting, in which case the same proportion of votes shall be required as is required for an
amendment to these Articles, Shareholders shall have a pre-emptive right to subscribe to all new
shares in their own classes in proportion to their registered shareholdings.

Only a sharcholders” meeting may decide on a reduction of share capital, in which case the same
proportion of votes shall be required as is required for an amendment to these Articles.
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Shareholders’ register; communications with shareholders
Article 6
Shares in the Company are issued electronically in accordance with Act No. 7/2020 on Central
Securities Depositories, Securities Settlements and the Electronic Registration of the Ownership
of Financial Instruments,

The board of the Company shall maintain a register of shares as required by law. A register of
shares complying with the Act on Central Securitics Depositories, Securities Settlements and the
Electronic Registration of the Ownership of Financial Instruments shall be regarded as fully valid
evidence of the ownership of shares in the Company, and dividend and all announcements shall
be sent to the party who, at any given time, is registered in the Company’s register of shares as the
owner of the relevant shares.

Article 7

The use of electronic document exchange and electronic mail shall be permitted in
communications between the Company and shareholders. This authorisation shall cover
communications of all types between the Company and sharcholders, such as notifications of
shareholders’ meetings, dividend payments and other announcements which the board of the
Company may decide to have sent to shareholders. Such electronic communications shall be
equivalent to communications written on paper. The board of the Company shall set rules on how
electronic communications are to be effected.

Prohibition on lending; own shares and shareholders’ obligations
Article 8
The Company may not grant loans against the security of its shares. The Company may purchase
its own shares to the extent permitted by law. No voting rights may be exercised in respect of the
shares owned by the Company itself.

Article 9
No shareholder shall be liable for commitments of the Company in excess of his or her
sharcholding in the Company. Sharcholders shall be obliged, without any special undertaking on
their part, to comply with the Company’s Articles of Association as they are at present or as they
may subsequently be amended in a lawful manner. This provision may neither be amended nor
deleted by any resolution of a shareholders” meeting.

Shareholders’ meetings
Article 10
Supreme authority in all the Company’s affairs, within the limits imposed by these Articles of
Association and Icelandic law, shall rest with lawful sharcholders’ meetings.

Article 11
Those entitled to attend sharcholders’ meetings are: shareholders, together with their advisors;
shareholders™ proxies (agents); the Company’s board and auditors, and also the CEO, even
though he or she is not a shareholder, In addition, the board may invite experts to attend
individual meetings if their opinions or assistance is needed.

The board may determine that shareholders can participate in the business of shareholders’
meetings electronically without being present at the meeting venue.

AN
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Article 12
The annual general meeting shall be held within six months of the end of the financial year.

Extraordinary general meetings shall be held in accordance with the decision of the board or at the
demand of shareholders who control at least one twentieth of share capital in the Company. Such
demands shall be made in writing, with the matters to be discussed stated, and the meeting shall
be called within fourteen days. If the board fails to call a meeting after receiving such a demand,
the assistance of the minister may be sought under the second paragraph of Article 87 of the Public
Limited Liability Companies Act, No. 2/1995.

Article 13
The board of the Company shall meetings by sending an announcement to each sharcholder by
electronic mail or by an advertisement in the media. Annual general meetings shall be called
with at least fourteen days” notice and extraordinary general meetings with at least seven days’
notice.

The matters to be discussed shall be stated in the notice of the meeting.

A shareholders’ meeting shall be valid if it has been lawfully called and is attended by
shareholders, or their proxies, who control at least half of the share capital in the Company. If
a meeting is not valid because it fails to meet these conditions, a new meeting shall be called
within a month with at least seven days” notice, and this latter meeting shall then be valid as
regards the treatment of the matters which were to be treated at the former meeting if it is attended
by shareholders, or their proxies, who control at least 10% of share capital in the Company. A
shareholders’ meeting shall elect a chairman and secretary of the meeting.

Article 14
One vote shall accompany each krona of share capital in the Company. A simple majority of votes
shall be decisive at shareholders” meetings unless other provisions are made in Icelandic law or in
these Articles.

Article 15
Shareholders may, by a written instrument of proxy, authorise proxies to attend shareholders’
meetings and exercise their voting rights. Proxies shall produce a written or electronic instrument
of proxy, which shall be dated.

Instruments of proxy may not be recalled in a manner accepted as valid vis-a-vis the Company
after they are produced when the meeting materials are handed out or afier the shareholders’
meeting has been convened, whichever takes place first.

The board of the Company may decide on the use of electronic media in connection with
participation by shareholders in sharcholders’ meetings and voting under Article 80 of the Public
Limited Liability Companies Act, No. 2/1995. If the board intends to exercise the above
authorisation, this shall be stated in the notice of .the meeting, and instructions on participation
shall be set out in the notice.
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Article 16
The approval of all shareholders shall be required in order to:

a. oblige shareholders to advance funds in excess of their obligations to meet the Company’s
needs:

b. restrict shareholders’ right to dispose of their shares, or

c. amend the provisions of these Articles regarding persons’ sharcholdings in the Company or
their equality of status.

Proposals for amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association or regarding the merger of
the Company with other companies or firms may not be treated at a meeting unless they were
mentioned in the notice announcing the meeting,

Article 17
The following matters shall be on the agenda of the annual general meeting:

1. The board of the Company shall present a report to the shareholders on the Company’s financial
position and its operations during the previous operational year.

. The Company’s annual financial statements for the previous operational year, together with the
comments of its auditors, shall be presented for approval.

. Election of the Company’s board of directors.

. A decision on the disposition of the Companys profit or loss and on the payment of dividend.

. Election of the auditors.

. Determination of payment to the directors and auditors for their work during the previous
operational year.

7. The board’s proposals on the Company’s remuneration policy.

8. Discussion and voting on other matters lawfully presented.

o
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The board of the Company shall compile, and present to the annual general meeting, a brief
summary of the shareholdings of individual shareholders and their voting rights, and also of the
changes that have taken place during the year. Comparable information on corporate group
relationships in which the Company may be involved shall also be available, where appropriate.

Article 18

A minutes book shall be kept, and all business transacted at sharcholders' meetings shall be
recorded in it,

The board of directors of the Company and its executive management
Article 19
The board of the Company shall consist of five persons, elected at the annual general meeting for
one year at a time, Three alternates shall also be appointed by the annual general meeting for one
year at a time.

The board of the Company shall direct all the Companys affairs between shareholders” meetings
and defend its interests vis-a-vis third parties. A majority of the directors (members of the board)
shall be required for any decision that is to legally bind the Company. The presence of the majority
of the board members constitutes a quorum. No important decision may be taken, however,
without all directors having had an opportunity to discuss the matter, if this is possible, Issues shall
then be decided by a majority of the votes. If votes on an issue are evenly divided, then the
chairman’s vote shall determine the issue.
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Directors may participate in board meetings via teleconferencing equipment.
Minutes of board meetings shall be kept.

Article 20
The board of the Company shall set procedural rules for itself and for the CEO.

Article 21
The board of the Company shall divide responsibilities between its members. Any director
may demand a board meeting. The CEO shall have the same right.

Article 22
The board of the Company shall engage the CEO and determine his or her terms of service. It shall
also confer power of procuration for the Company.

The CEO shall be in charge of the day-to-day management of the Company in accordance with
the rules that are set, or may be set, by the board of the Company. Day-to-day management
does not include measures that are extraordinary or of major significance.

The CEO shall be in charge of the Company’s accounting and the engagement of staff. The
CEO shall provide the directors and auditors with all information concemning the Company’s
operations that they may require and that should be provided according to law.

Auditing and annual financial statements
Article 23
An audit company shall be elected at the Company’s annual general meeting. The auditors shall
audit the Company's annual financial statements for each operational year and present their
conclusions to the annual general meeting. Auditors may not be elected from among the
Company’s directors or from among its employees.

Article 24
The operational and fiscal year is the calendar year.

The board shall have completed compilation of the annual financial statements, and submitted
them to the auditors, no later than one month before the annual general meeting.

Special rights
Article 25
No special rights accompany shares in the Company. Shareholders shall not be obliged to have
their shares redeemed unless provisions to the contrary are made in law.

Article 26
Amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association
These Articles of Association may be amended at a valid annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting if approved by 2/3 of the votes cast, and by sharcholders who control at least 2/3
of the share capital in the Company represented at the meeting, providing that no other proportion
of votes is required under these Articles or Icelandic law.

&
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Article 27
Proposals conceming the merger, dissolution or winding up of the Company shall be treated in the
same manner as amendments to these Articles of Association. In order to be valid, a decision
regarding dissolution must be passed by the votes of sharcholders who control at least 2/3 of total
share capital in the Company. The shareholders’ meeting that takes a valid decision regarding the
dissolution or winding up of the Company shall also decide on the disposition of its assets and the
payment of its liabilities.

Article 28
Where these Articles of Association lay down no provision on the handling of a matter, the
provisions of the Public Limited Liability Companies Act, and of other statutes as appropriate,
shall be observed.

7 June 2021

Stefan Pér Bjdrnsson (sign.)

li —J;ue. 22U
' \j/.t'fy-t;zéq.o’

Jeffrey Cosser [
Authorised translator =~

Cenified a true and accurate translation from the original feelandic. Icelandic-English
Jefirey Cosser, Authorised Translator,
bydingastofa JC, Hiidarvegur 25, 200 Kopavogur, loeland.
Tel (+334) 557 4076, E-muil: jme@itn.is



10 APPENDIX II - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2020 AND 2019

The following document is an English translation of Solid Clouds* Financial Statements which has been prepared
by its accountants and reviewed and approved by the Company
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Managing Director and Board of Directors” Report

Solid Clouds ehf. was founded in 2013, Its purpose is information technology, software development and creation
and marketing of computer games.

This is the Company’s first Financial Statements prepared in accordance with [FRS (International Financial
Reporting Standards). Amounts are in thousands of Icelandic kronur. For further information on changes from the
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with the Ieelandic Financial Statement Act and Regulation on the
Presentation and Contents of Financial Statements and Consolidated Group Statements, to the Financial Statements
made in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, we refer to the notes to the Financial
Statements.

Net income for the year 2020 amounted to ISK 9.644 thousand. Total assets were ISK 658.157 thousand at year
end 2020 and Stockholder’s equity amounted to 1SK 633.819 thousand at the same time. Employees during the year
were 17.

Number of shareholders at the end of the year 2020 are 167 but were 158 at the beginning of the year, The
following are the ten largest shareholders at year-end 2020;

SHELAN GUNTKBESSON ...oociaiirensisssasirarisrsrassrsrarensssssnsdsasisebsnins soabetsbsbinss1asarsresssessasesasanssasasasdss 15,61%
Kjolur fiarfestingarfélag ¢hf seapeatsrsersrestssmsnans ek bORIERY 10,00%
Sigurdur Amljétsson ... 6,21%
Stefin Bor Bjdrmsson . 5.11%
Tomas Sigurdsson 3.13%
Daniel Sigurdsson .. 2,54%
$9 ¢hf. ... 2,27%
Silfurberg ehf. oo 1.95%
Brimgardar chf. ..... i 1,.71%
Karl J. Karlsson , 1.69%%
Other shareholders (157) v 49,78%

Payment of dividends are not authorized in the year 2021, but the Company's Board of Directors refers to the
Financial Statements regarding allocation of net earnings for the year and other changes in equity.

The year 2020 has been marked by Covid-19 and the Company’s management has sought 1 ensure the safety and
well-being of employees through measures to reduce their risk of infection. It is the opinion of the management that
Covid-19 has had a disruptive effect on software development due to the government’s social distancing regulations.
The Company has worked to create good working conditions for all employees with equality and respect in mind.
The Company's Board of Directors is authorized to enter into stock option agreements with employees so that their
interests coincide as well as possible with the interests of shareholders.

In carly 2020, Solid Clouds chf announced thai the beta version of Starborne would be tested in the spring. In April,
the release went live with good reception and the Company has received considerable income from testing the
game. The Company is currently working on a new version of Starborne that will place more emphasis on players
being able to play at their own pace and buy more in the game to further increase players' spending and presence in
the game. A new version of the game is planned at year-end 2021,

The Tcelandic government has increased the incentive for innovation in the country through a number of measures
that have supported the Company's operations. Solid Clouds chf is currently working on further financing to
strengthen the Company’s operations for the future and for continued growth.

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director of Solid Clouds ¢hf hereby confirm the Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2020 by means of their signatures,

RO Reykjavik, 11th of May 2021
_[ “'QTD - ) (2. =B
Sefan unnoron ;,«ij«mfm //¢7r77/ff/¢.«é‘//'
< ¥
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Dmectors and Shareholders of Sohid Clouds ehf

Opinicn

We have audited the accompanymg Finaneal Statements of Sohd Clouds ehf wiuch comprize the Balance Sheet at
31 December 2020, the Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equty and Statement of Cash Flows for the
vear then ended and notes, comprsmz a3 swmmery of spuficant accounting policies and other explanatory
mfcemation

In owr opimon, the Financial Statements give a tue and fair wiew of the fmaneial postion of Solid Clouds ehf as at
31 December 2020, and of 1tz fmancial performance and 1ts cash flows for the vear then ended m accordance with
Intermnational Fmancial Reparting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audrt in accordance with Infermational Standards on Anditmg (ISAs). Chr responsibibhies under
those standards are finther desenbed in the Auditor's Fesponmibiites for the Audit of the Fimancial Statements
section of our report. We are mdependent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requurements that are
relevant to owr audit of financial statements m Iceland and we have fulfilled our other ethecal responsibilihes m
aceordance with these mequrements. We bebeve that the audit evidence we have cobtained i1s suffictent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opmon.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Managing Director for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Managmg Dhrector are responmible for the preparatton and fanr presentzhon of the
Fimancial Statements m accordance with IFRS: as adopted by the Ewropean Union and for such mmtemnz] control as
they determune 15 necessary to enable the mepastion of Fmancial Statements that are free from matenal
musstatenent, whether due to frand or emror.

In prepanng the Financizl Statements, the Board of Dwectors and CEQ are respomsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to contimue as 2 going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related fo going concern and
wmg the zomz concern bams of accountng wunless they erther miend fo hondate the Company or to cease
operations, o kave no reahishe alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors and Managing Dhrector are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Anditor's Responzibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements
(O objectrves are to obfam reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements a5 2 whole are free from
mizterial nusstatenvent, whether due to frand or emvor, and to 155ue an auditer’ s report that includes our opmion.

Reasomable asawance 1= a lagh level of asswrance. but 15 not 2 guarantes that an audit conducted m zccordance wath
I54s wall alwavs detect a matenial misstaternent when 1t exasts. Misstatersents can anse from frand or error and are
considered mzterial if, mdmidually or m the zpgrezate. thev could reasonzbly be expected to mfluence the
econonuc dectsions of wsers taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

Az part of an audit m accordance with ISAs, we exercize professional judsment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the nsks of matenzl musstatement of the Financial Statements. whether doe fo frawd or ermor,
desipn and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and obtam andit evidence that 15 sufficent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opimon. The nsk of ot detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud 15 lngher than for one resulting from emor, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, mtentional onussions,
nusrepresentations, o the overmde of infernal control.

Kollal loscdls i - Flmancial statiménty 2000




Independent Auditor's Report, contd.

* Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company 10 cease 1o continue as a going concerm.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with The Board of Directors and audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Article 104, Paragraph 2 of the Icelandic Financial Statements Act No,
3/2006, we confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the report of the Board of Directors and Managing Director
accompanying the Financial Statements includes the information required by the Financial Statements Act if not
disclosed elsewhere in the Financial Statements.

Reykjavik, 11th of May 2021

Svénbjarn Sveinbjornsgton
Certified Public Accountant

cfﬂlm b, ffjm{éom@/

Gadaendurskodun slf
Bildshifda 14, 110 Reykjavik
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Income Statement for the year 2020

Motes 2020 2019
Operating income
Grants

6676 64.192
Capitalized development costs ..o 6 { 51.008) (85.628)

659.436 0

Operating expenses

Salanes and related expenditras . 5 1370918 130,015

Cperating expenses ... 68,952 62520
Capitalized developmoent ©056 ..o {228.418) {210.443)

60.467 32.030

Operating profit (losz) before depreciation and financial me. and expenses ... 8960 (320300

Deprecation of nght-of use a558ts oo (5.871) ( 5.758)

Financial income and (expenses)

(1.0 { 1.190)
1865 )

1279 1.371

Operating 1055 Defore MOOMIE FE oo oo (22.67) (36417

Net profit (loss) for the Vear ... e s, 9644 (36417T)
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Balance sheet December 31, 2020

Motes 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 1.1.2019

Assets

& M5.677 395317 2705302
7 13428 18.795 24.062
3 32318 0 o

Hon-ourrent assats 391423 414112 254 564

Crther recervablas ... ) 6.466 28723 2653
Cash and cash equivalents ... 58963 113.737 95778

Cument aszets 66.734 142460 101.657

Total assets 658.157 556.573 396221

Equicy

Share premmumm e 33299 634259 436179
Festricted 8QUILY ... v emressss s s e HM5.677 395317 270.502
Share based pavments . 4689 2035 1476
Acoumilated deficit ( 651.959) (511.239) { 350.007)

Total stockholders equty & 633.61% 52231 359778

Non-current labilites

Lease Dabiliies .o 8942 13525 18737

Mon-current habihhes 8.942 13525 18.737

Liabilities

Accounts payabls . 4005 1554 ]
Liabilities to related parfies .o 200 214 o
Crther payables o 9309 12815 12380

Cwrrent habihitias 15356 0727 17.703

Total halnlihes 24338 34252 36442

Total equity and liabilities 638.157 556.573 396.221

olll Cliscky eff- Flamamcial staliea 000 Aty i DK




Statement of Changes in Equity December 31, 2020

Share Share  BRestricted Share-based Accumml Taotal
capital premimm equity payments deficit Equity
Changes in 2019
Shareholders'
equity December 31, 2018 1.628 436179 271.565 0 {34841 360,932
Effects of IFRS adoption ............ ( 1.063) 1476 ( 1.566) (1.153)
Equty | Jamuary 2019 . 1628 416179 270502 1476 (350,007 359778
Paid-m eapital ... 3 198.080 198.400
Loss for the vear ..o {36417 (3641T)
Festicted equity ... - 124 815 (124.815) 0
Share based payments 359 359
Equuty December 31, 2019 ___. 1.948 634259 395317 2035 (51139 522321
Changes in 2020
Shareholders'
equity December 31, 2019 1948 634259 395317 2035 (511.3% 322331
Paid-m capital oo 160 99040 99200
Profit for the vear ... 9.644 9644
FResticted equaty ... 150360 { 150.360% 0
Share based payments ... 2654 2654
Equity December 31, 2020 .. 2108 733299 545677 4689 (651.954) 633819

See firther informaton about equuty in note 9.

Solial Clouhi ahif= Flmoacial inalionteaty T30
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Statement of Cash Flows for the vear 2020

HNotes 020
Operating activities

Operating loss before finaneal meome and expenses and meome t20 oo {23953
Adjustments to reconcile results from operstion to opersting actrvities:
Depreciation of developemsent costs . U 27.050
Depreciation of nght-ofuse assats | S 5871

e

(37.788)

0
5.758
593

Warkmg capatal provided by (used m) opersting actrvties 11.623

(31.43T)

(22.845)
2782

Cash provided by (used in) operafing actmates 27874

{ 51.500)

2564
(1.190)

Met cash provided by (used m) operating actmates 27288

{ 50.126)

Investment activities

Capitalized developement o6t oo 6 { 177.410)

( 124.815)

Tirvestment activities ( 177.410)

( 124.815)

Financing activities

luslalu:m:lr' DleL-E habﬂma . (5.703)

198.400
(5.325)
(173)

Financmg actvites 93483

192902

(Decrease) increase of cash and cash equivalents ...ovceevcvessirnnnns { 56.639)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..., 113.737

Translation difference of cash and cash equivalents ...vvveevviee 1.865

17561

95,778

)]

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..o s 58.963

113.737

Kol Uy e - Flmamcial smalemess 2000

Aviursts ar in KK




Notes to the Financial Statements

Tl Clowct whyf - Fimoncial sisieneste 350

Solid Clouds ebf (the "Compamy™) is a limited lisbility company incorporated and domiciled in Iceland The address
of the Compamy's registered office is Eidistorg 17, Seltjamames, Iceland The main purpese of the Conpany is
information technology, soffware development snd creation and marksting of conmuter games.

Basis of preparation

Somement of compliance with International Finmncial Reporting Standards

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationsl Financial Feporting Standards (TFR.5s)
as adopted by the EU

These are the Cormpamy's first Financial Statrments that are prepared according to IFES and therefore IFRS 1 "First
time adopsion of IFF.S" has bean applied.

The effects of implementing [FRS on the comprehensive income, financial position and cash fows are described n
note 12

The Financiz] Statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Solid Clouds ebf’ on May, 11th, 2021,

Bl of measuranart
The Financial Statements are prepared on historical cost basis.

Presemiarion and functiona] currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Icelandic krona (ISED), which is the Compamy's fimctional omrency. All
financial information presented in ISE has been rounded to the nesrest thousand except when otherwizse indicated

Use of estimates and judsemants

The preparatdon of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRSs requires memsgement to meke judsements
estimates and ssounptions that affect the application of accoumins policies mnd the reported amomts of assets,
lishilites, income and expenses. Acmeal results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and mnderlying ssoumptions are reviewed oo an ongoing basis. Fevisions to acooumibng esumates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any funme periods afected.

The determination of fair vahie is based on precondidons, which are dependent on the judsment of management on
fusre events. Acmal results can be different Tom these estimatas.

Going concern

COVID-19's manszement and managers acdons have foonsed on ensuming the safery and well-being of enployees

throush measures to reduce their risk of infection. In order fo continme mintermapted sofiware development, the
Conmpeany needs firther financing. Failare to do s0 may lesd o 3 reduction in sofmaare development

Management has assessed the Comipany’s going concern It is their opinion that its contimied operations are secumed
and that the Company is well equipped to mest its oblizatons in the foreseesble fumre.

The Financiz] Stapements are therefore presented based on contiming operatons.

-10-
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Notes, cont.:

3. Gignificant scoountng policies

a.  Foreign criommcies
Transactions in foreign cumencies are Tanslated to Icelandic krona at the foreign exchange mate at the date of the
Tansaction. Assets and lisbilites denominsted n foreign omrencies are ganslated to Icelandic krons at the foreizn
exchange rate af the reporine date

b,  Revenuie recosmition
Solid Clouds ehf has mcome from the sale of virmesl goods n the computer zames that the Compamy has releasad.
Fevemme from virmal goods is recorded when players have nsed the prodncts in gouestion. The Company estmares the
ammmt of mused virmal goods on the reporting date and enters it as prepaid income. Historically, players have mostly
nsed products within 3 mont of purchasing the prodocts in question, and this is taken inte acommt in the estimstion.

. (nvermment gras
Grovermment grants related to development costs have been entered to reduce capitalized development costs to affser
them against the costs they are infended fo cover.

There are no mfilfillad conditons or umcertainges associated with these grames at year-end 2020, Feimbuarsement for
research and development costs for the year 2020 will be paid in October or Movembser 2021, The reimbursement has
not been recognized as oome.

d  Emploves bengfiis
Short-term employes benefits are expenzed as the related service is prowided but subsequently capimlized as
development costs. A lLisbility is recognized for the smount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructve oblization to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employes and the oblization can
be estimated relisbly.

The Commpamy pays conmibations to employess on an independent basis for commibutions related to pension fimds. The
company bears no responsibility for the oblizations of the fimds.

See note 9d regarding stock opton agresments but the Company has entersd infto stock option agresmentt with
enmployees so that their interssts coincide as closely as possible with the interests of sharehalders.

e. Jnoerest income
Interest income is recogmized on 3 time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the efectve
rate over the period to manmity.

£ Income tax
Income tax is recognized in the Income Statement except when it relates to items that are recognized divectly in equity,
in which case the income tax is recopnized in aquity.

Deefermed income tax is recognized for temporary differences between the camying amomts of sssets and lisbilites in
the Financial Statements. on the one hand and their tax value, on the other

The caloalation of deferred tax is based on the tax rate that is expected to take effect when termporary differences will
e reversed, based on omrent law on the settlement date. Calculated incomme @x assets and income tax lisbilides are
equalized when there is a lezal right to equalize income tax for payment and tax assets.

Caloulated mcome tax asset are ooly recopnized to the extent that it is considered probable that taxable profits will be
available in the firre spzinct which the asset can be utlized The calonlsted ncome tax asset is valued on each
seftflement date and reduced to the extent that it is considerad probable that it will not be wilized

Sl Clowdls oy~ Fimanciad sisfenesis X000 1 Amouniy arr iw F5E




Notes, cont.:

g Jmangble azsets

Intangible assets are only capitalized when it is probable that the economic bensfits associated with the asset wall
benefit the Company and the cost value of the asset can be esumated relishly. The Company's intanzible assets are
developed software and are recognized at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is recogmized in 8 systematic manmer
oves the estimated useful life of the asset after it starts generating revenne and s based on the 10-year useful life of the
azsef. Deprecdation of development costs is entered for the first time in the year 2020 and the depreciation relates to
the capitalizatnon of development costs in the years 20146 to 2018, Estimeated useful lives and depreciation methods are
reassessed at the end of each year.

Besearch costs are charged when mowred. Development costs are capitalized only if all of the following conditions
aTe met:

- that the Conpany can conplete the development of the intsneible asset so that it is ready for use or in a salabla
condition,

- that the Company intends to conplete the development of the property and nse or sell it,

- that the Company demonsirates its ability to sell the property,

- that the Company demonstrates that the propery will generate income in the fimre,

- that the Company has sufficient technology and respurces to complete development and sales,

- that the Company has the capadty to estimate development expenses relishly.

Capimlization of development costs is only when all of te sbove conditions are met, otherwize it is expensed when
inoared Afier capitalization development costs are estimated at cost less acomiulated depreciation

It is the conchosion of the management that all the sbove conditons are met.

b Right-qf we stz and lease Tabaline
The Intemational Financis] Reporting Standard IFRS 16 Leases was issued in Jameary 2016, The standard mesns that
almipst all leases ate recognized in the lessee’s Balance Shest because the reament of operating and Snancing leases is
no lonper different. Under the new standard. property (Tight-of use assets) and the debt due to the payment of rent, are
enterad inthe Balance Shest

At commencement of a lease confract 8 lessee recognizes a night-of use ssset representing its right to me the
underlying asset and 3 lease liability representing its obligation o make lease payments. The right-of use asset is
initialty messured at cost, which cormprises the initis]l amount of the lease lisbility adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus amy initial direct costs inourmed and an estimate of costs to dismentle
and remove the underlying asset or 1o restore the wmderlying asset or the site on which it is located, less amy lease

The nghi-of use asset 15 posted among Swed assets I the Financial Statements snd are subsequently depreciated using
the sraight line method from the conmmencerment date to the end of the lesse term

The lease lisbility iz initally measured at the presemt valoe of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discomibed using the Company's intemnal rate of refum

i Fiumeial asses
The Company's financial assets are wade receivables and other receivables. The Compamy intends to keep the
recefvables umtl they are due. Coniractus]l payments on due dates consist only of imstallments of principal.
Information sbout expected loan losses on financial assets can be found in Note 106,

The Company delistes financial assets when the confracheal right to fisure cash flows from the financiz] asset no
longer exists or when the risks and benefits of the financiz] asset are transferred to snother party.

J.  Fruncigl Habilifie: and equity instruments
An equity msmiment s any fype of apreement that involves the remaining inferests in the Company's assets afer all
lisbilities have been deducted Equity instmements issued by the Company are recorded at cost less the direct cost of
issming them

Financial liabilifies are estimated at amortized cost based on effective interest rates. The Company only writes off
financial lisbilities when the obligaton due to them no longer exdsts. (Gaims or losses due to deregisiration sre
recognized in the Income Staterment.

Falid Clowde afyf- Fieonciad siofonents X0 Amoumia aew i I
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Notez continning:

4. Geographical distribution of the Company's income
The followins table shows the distibution of reverme from the sale of the zame Starbome in different commimies i the
year 2020
SaleinISE  Percentage of

thousands cale

United States of America (TIRAY e 33.007 51, 76%
DRI ettt e et et e e 4445 6.97%
United Kingdom ......... . 4387 6.88%
Gemmany . 3475 545
BAIEITALIR ..o ettt et e e et et et st et s 21748 431%
France ... 1.530 240
Farssia 1.256 1.97%%
BB .o es e eec s e e et 1.052 1.65%
TIEtRETIATMAE ... ..o e e e e e e e 831 1.46%
Demmiarh ..o e 701 1,10%%
South-Africa 6338 1.00%%
T ettt et et et et et et e ] 0.94%
CBII .ot ettt er et erc e er e er e et e s 0 0,65%%
Brazl ......... 0 0,65
BaLEIUIIL ..ottt ettt et ettt et s e g 0.61%
73 other countries ... 1.729 12,12%
Fevermes from the game ... 63.768 1040, M

5. Salaries and salary related expenditures

Salaries and salary related expendinmes are specified as follows: 2020 2009
BAAIATIBE ottt ee ettt a e e e eh e et ee et e ettt er et s 114.666 106924
Salary related expen@E TS ..o 13153 23000
Salaries and zalary related expenditures in the Income Statement . 137918 130015
Capitalized salaries and salary related expendinmes as development cost . { 121.582) { 130.015)
Expensed salamies and salary relased expenditores ... 16.326 1]
Average momber of full tme aquivalent employess ... ..o 17 14

The total salaries of the Board, and managing directors of Solid Clouds amomted to a total of ISE 20,7 million in the
year 2020 (2019: ISK 20,7 million). Pension fimd payments amounted to ISE 2.4 million during the year 2020 (2019:
ISK 2.4 millicn).

6. Intangible assets
The Compamy's development costs are based on the Company's production of 8 pmltiplayer video game technolozy
framework that can be used o make mmltplayer games for the internations] market. The production of such Fames is
enerally complex, fme consuming and expensive. As stated in Mote 3g, management estimates that the capitalization
of development costs mest all TAS 38 capitalization requirsments.

Depreciadon of the development cost iz caboulated owver the esdmated life of the project, which i fen years.
Drevelopment cost and depreciation are specified as follows:

2020 1019
Book VAIIE L1 e et e et et s e 395317 271,565
Cormection with the implementation of TFRS ..o cear e i { 1.043)
Comected book vabne 11 o - 270502
Capitalized developement cost ... 124815
Depreciation of developsment Cost ... 1]
Book value 3L 0. et 305317
b Cloucls b Fimoncial sistenents 3010 Aoty are b P2
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Note: continuing:

7

Fald Clowuds chyf - Fimancial sisienesin 3300

Leases
The Balance Sheet shows the following amoumts relating to leases:

Right-gf use assats 2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year ... 18795 24042
Increase in right-of-use assets due to revaluston of lease lisbilites ... 4 4491
Depreciztion Sming the YBET ... oo (5871) (5.758)
Balance af the end of the Yeam ... 13428 18795
Lease lHabilities
BIODEOMIITRIIY | ceececem et et e et coceb e ettt et e e 2042 13525
Current ... 5.088 5.703
Total lease lishilides 14029 19223
The Income Statement shows the following smoumes relatng to leases: 2020 2019
Depreciation of night-of-use assets (Included in depreciation) ... ... 5.871 5758
Interest expense (inclnded in interest expenses) Bl5 1062
Expencze in short-tenn leases (included in opersfing expenses) 1.524 824
Total expense in the Income Swtement for leases . 8210 7651
The Company paid ISK 7.9 million. kr. in rent in the year 2020 (2019: ISK 7,3 million).
Income tax asset
Income tax asset is specified s follows: 2020
Income tax in the Moome SEEIEIIIEE . ... oot e es e e eneees 32318
Income tax asset in the Balance Sheat 32318
Caloulated income tax asset is divided to the following items:
Acoumrmilated B DS e e ar e e 141453
B {109.135)
Income tax asset in the Balmee Shest ... 313138

The tax loss at the end of 2020, which may be camied forward according to Icelandic tax law, amounts to ISE 707
million kr. Acommlared tax losses that are not nsed against profits within ten years of their fonmation are canceled

Acommbated tax loss is usable as follows:

Tant loss for the year 20013, nseable undl the year 2023 ...
Tax loss for the year 2015, nseable unfil the year 2025

Tant loss for the year 2006, nseable nnl the year 2026

Tant loss for the year 2017, nseable nol the year 2027
Tax loss for the year 2018, useable unfil the year 2028

Tant loss for the year 2019, nseable nndl the year 2020

Tax loss for the year 2020, useable unfil the year 2030

Total acoummalated T30 LISE ..o et

-14-
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Note: continuing:

o

Equity

a.  Share capital

The Company's share capital, according to its Article of Assodation amownis to ISE 2] million. One vote is attached
o each ISK one share in the Compamy.

b Share premium
The Compamny's share premitm shows the premium paid for paid-in share capital during the year.

c.  Resricred equaty
According to Icelandic laws and regulstions, companies that capitalize development cost shall reconize the same
SIS &5 3 Separate item in equity which is not permitted to allocate dividends from. That item shall be seftled in
proportion to the amount of anmual deprecistion of capitalized development costs. The item showld be dissolved if the
aszset is sold, discontimed or fully depreciated

d  Swock option agreenent

Cm 31 December 220, the Company's employess and coniractors are entitled to stock option agreements for 39,555
share: in the Company where the acquisition of nghis 1= equal over two to fowr years. The stock option asTeements
were granted in the years 2015 to 2020 and expire in the period Jme 2021 to Fameary 2024, The average price of stock
options in the agreements is ISE 410. The Board of Directors has approved the issue of stock options in the total
amoums of ISE 92 000 so at year-end 2020 there are ISE 52 445 mallocated stock optons and theit sverage life is 521
days.

If an employes or confractor has not exercised the stock option within five years of sipning or within two years of the
employves ceasing to work for the Company, the stock option expires.

Nimber of Average
The following table shows an analysis of stock options in the year 2020 chares  redempt. price
Stock option apreements at the beginming of 2020 .. G6.520 330
Granted stock options during the year 2020 15788 285
Expired stock options during the year 020 e {15.504) 236
Canceled stock options during the year 2020 ... { 24.960) 206
Stock option agTeements at the end of 2020 41.853 264

b Tl ey~ Fimonciaf sisfements 200 Amcunta core i 5K
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Note: continuing:

10. Financial risk manazement

a.  Cvemiew
The Company is exposed to various types of rsk that are sssociated with the financial instmements and markets in
which it operates. The most importans rypes of financial risk to which the Compamy is exposed from are:

* credit nsk, see b

* ligqumidity nisk, see c.

* market risk (omrency risk, interest rate nsk]), see d.
* operztonal sk, see e

This mote presents informsation sbout the Conmpamy's exposure to each of the above dsks, the Company’s objectives,
palicies and processes for measuring and menzsing sk

The Board of Directors of the Compamy has oversll responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Conpany’s risk management The Board has commended the Manaping Director's day to day developins and
monitoring of the Company’s risk mensgament policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the ricsks faced by the Conpany, o
set appropriate risk limits and confrols, ad to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Furthermore, the goal is
manage risk effectively and rick managpement is based on the risk being in accordance with the Company’s willineness
to take ricks, thus contributing to increased stability and long-term profitability. Pisk manssement policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect chanses in market conditions md the Conmpany’'s activities. The Conmpany,
through its reining and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constmactive control
emvironment in which all employess imderstand their roles and oblizations.

b, Credit risk
Credit sk is the risk that 8 coumterparty o 4 financial insmoment will fail fo discharge san chlization or commitment
that it has entered into with the Company. The Compamy does not lend to its customers. The Company's outstanding
irade receivables at the end of 2020 are credit card receivables. The Compamy's cash is stored in accoumts with Arion
Bank and PayPal.

Largest possible losz on financial amsets
The Compamy's largest possible loss doe to financial assets is their book value, which was as follows on the reporting

Trade and other recervables are specified as follows: 31.12.2020 31122019
Trade and other recefvables L. e 1712 X873
Larpest possible loss on made and other recetvables .. T.772 RT3
Cash and cash equivalents 58063 113.737
Largest possible loss on fnancial 855815 o e 56.734 142 460
b Clovcih '~ Fimancial sistenents X0 T
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Note: confinuing:

Tmpairment on recenables
The age of trade receivables and it impainment was as follows at the end of the quarter:
Mominal vahe Impairment
31.12.2020 31.122019 31.122020 31.12219
Mot yet due 7772 28.723 1] 1]
Total trade recefvablas .. 1772 28723 1] 1]

The majority of Snancial assets within the impairment model of IFES 9 are baok deposits, and it is the opinion of
management that they camy insignificant credit risk . Credit risk on ade receivables and other short-term recaivables
is also assessed as insipmificant, as the majority of them are credit card receivables. It is thersfore the opinion of the
management that the effect of edit risk 25 3 whole is insignificant for the Financial Statements and no write-down is
recognized due to credit risk of fnancial assets.

c.  Liguidity risk
Liguidity nsk is the risk that the Company will encoumter difficulty in meeting the oblizations associated with its
financial liabilides that are serled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Compamy’'s approach o
managing liqudity is to ensume that it will abwvays bave sufficient iquidity to meet its Liabilines as they fall due and
ths avoid damagine the Compamy’s reputation.

The breakdown by conractal mamity, inchading expecied interest payments, are a5 follows:

December 31, 2020 Confracmal Within 1-5 Onver
Book valoe cash flowr One Year Vears 5 years

14.020 15.105 5.088 B2 1]

405 405 405 1] 1]

200 200 200 1] 1]

9.300 9309 2300 o o

23943 25019 15.002 B2 1]

Tl Cloudle eyl - Fimoncial sisfenesis X000 -17- Amcumia e bw ISE




Note: continuing:

Decamber 31, 2019 Contracmual Within 1-5 Oner

Book walne cash flow Qe Year YEArS 5 years
Interest bearing debt ... 19.228 21624 5.703 13.525 1]
Accoumts payables 1.904 1e04 1.084 1] i}
Ralated party liabilites . 214 214 114 1] i}
Orher payables ... 12.815 12815 12815 1] i)
Total financial lishilites .. 34252 36,647 0727 13.525 o

d  Market risk
Miarket risk is the nsk that chenges in market prices, such as foreign exchanee mmtes and interest rates will affect the
Company’s income or the vahoe of its holdings of financial insmments. The objectve of market risk management is o
manage and control market risk expesures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the refumn
The Company is exposed to cuomency risk due to purchsses and bomowings in omorencies other than ISE. The
owTencies that mainky create exchanze rate risk are the enro (EUE) and the T75D.

The Commpany does not specifically bedze against exchanse mate msk throush forward conmacts. Managemens
regularly reviews the Compamy's cumrency risk with the aim of limiting it as nmch as possible.

The breakdown of assets and lishilities in foreign ourrency is as follows:

Decemnber 31, 2020 EUR UsD Total
Cash and cash equivalents 37980 14847 51827
Tt CUTBnCy TSK ..o s e e s 37.080 14.047 52927
December 31, 2019 EUR UsD Total
B 16.039 12,585 8713
Cash and cash equivalents 15582 2.6138 18500
et omrrency Tk e 31920 15.303 47223

The exchange rates of the mejor ourencies during the years 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Average exchange rate Period-end exchange rate
TYear 2020 Year 2019 31.12.2020 31122019
EUE.... 134,52 137,68 154,10 135,83
UsD 13527 12204 127,21 121,10
Sl Clowds eyl Finonciol sisienexs X0 Amounty arw bw LK
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Notes continuing:

1L

Sl Clowcls ey« Finonciol sisienex X0

Samzithity analysis
A 10" smensthening of the ISE against the following cwrencies on December 31, 2020 would have increased
(decreased) the Conmpany's equity and profit before income tax by the following smounts. The snalysis is based on all
other variables remsinime wnchanzed

31.12.2020 31.122019

BB e e as e e s e eree et ettt men N 3182
L1 1485 1.530

The 107 weakening of the ISK against the above-menfioned oumencies wonld have had the same efect but in the
opposite direction, provided that all other variables had remained mchanzed.

Opertional risk

Operatonal risk is the sk of direct or indirect loss that may ooor due to 3 moober of factors in the Compamy’s
operstions, its staff work, technoloegy and organizaton insdequate or defectve infernal processes, and external fctors
other than credit, market and LHquidity risk, such as due to changes in laws and gensral atimdes towards corporate
governance. Operstions] risk arises for everyone the Company's operatdons.

It is the Company's policy to manage operationsl rsk in an efficent manner in order to avoid financial losses and o
profect its reputation, while ensuring that the nles of procedurs do not limidt the initative and ceativity of emoployess.

In order to reduce operational nsk, the Compeny has taken varions measures. Appropriate job separation has been
established, the Commpamy has emphasized zood working condifons, enphasized cost mnalysis, planming and
monitored business and commplisnce with the lew, conducted regular risk assessments, raimed employess, orzanized
wiork processes and mare.

Belated partie:

Tdersity qf relaed parties

The Compamy has a related party relagonship with its shareholders with significant influence. conmpamies owned by
themn and with its directors and executive officers and their spouses and dependent children

Tramsacnons with manasermt awd bey parsormmel

Feference is made to note 5 on salaries and benefits for the Company's board and managemens.

Solid Clouds ebf has lessed premises fom two shareholders who own 2 total of less than 2% in the Compenry. Fental
payments ammmbed to ISE 7,7 million in the year 2020 and ISE 7.3 million in the year 2019,

In the year 2020, the Compamy ha: purchased equipment in the smount of ISK 10 million fom a3 member of the
Conpany's deputy board.

Eelated party balances: 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Falated party balance at vear-snd 200 214

-19-
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Notes continuing:

12. Transfer from IS GAAF to IFRS
The Finsncial Statements are prepared for the first time in accordsnce with Infemafional Finsmcial Feporting
Standards (IFFS), & stated in note 23 on sccoumsing policies. The Company's implementaton date is Jamary 1, 20018,
50 the opening Balance Shest on December 31, 20138 reflect the effects of IFFS. The conparative amoumts have been
prepared i a similsr way and are therefore reproduced from those previously prepared in accordance with the
Tcelandic Anmmal Accoumts Act.

The acomming policies in note 3 have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year 2020, the
comparative information for the yesr ended 31 December 2019 and the preparation of an opening IFR.S Balance Sheet
at 1 Tammary 2019 (the Company's date of ransition).

Ammmis in the opening Balance Sheet of 15t of Jaonary 2019 have been chanped i accordance with IFES, ut were
previously presented in sccordance with Icelandic generally accepted accounting principles ('Icelandic GAAP"). An
explmation on how the ransiton from Irelandic GAAP to IFFSs has affected the Company's financial posidon and
financial performsnce is set out in the following tables and notes that accompany the tables. There are no significant
chanzes to the Compamy’s cash flows from Icelandic A AP o IFRAS.

Change: in equity from Icelandic GAAP to IFES: Equity
Equity according to Icelandic GAAP at 31 Dacember 2008 oo 360032
Equity according to IFR.S at 1 Jammary 2019 _. 350778
Change: from Icelandic accounting policies to IFRS 1153

Changes at the beginming of year 2019:
Advernsing and marketing costs expensed (previously capitalized on development costs) .. - 1.063
Insurance fise for stock opHion SETSEMENIE .. - o0
Tuotal changes due to IFES at 1 Janoary 2019 1153

Changes im loss for the year 2019:
Advertising and markefing costs expensed (previously capitalized on development costs) ... HT754
Expensed salary due to stock opion SgTeements ... ..., 559
Insurance fiee for stock OPHOD AFTESNMENNS ... e e e eaae e 34
Fent reversed, right-of nse asset and lease Habiliny remistered . [ 6.384)
Intersst axpenzes on lease lisbility expenzed 1.048
Diepreciation of 8 TED-0f USE BERET .o e e et et e en s 5.758
Total changes due to IFRS on the vear 2019, see further on next page 35.TRO
Changes from Icelandic GAAF to IFRS 36033
Falbd Clouds ohyf'- Fimoncial sisienese 300 Amounis arr in [5E
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Note: continuing:

Total effects of the transition to IFF.5s is an ncresse in equity amoumting fo ISE 36,9 million.

The folloaing tables show an overview of the mansition to IFRS and is divided info changes in estimates and changes

in presentaton

Income statement for the year 2019, changes from previons GAAP to IFRS

Icelamdic Changes Chamges  Restated acc.

GAAP in estimates  in presentation to IFRS

21437 11437

64192 64182

{ B5.628) ( 85.628)

(49.939) {40 030y

(128437 {5083) { 130.015)

([ GE914) 6.384 (62.5200

159 559 {34750 B5.628 210443

1] { 5.758) (5.758)

2564 2564

(124 ([ 1.0G) ([ 1.183)

(63T {35.7800 /] (36417

See explanation of change in loss for the year in table on page 19.
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Note: confinuing:

Restated Balance Sheet December 31, 2019

Azzeiz Origimal Corrections rel Other  Restated acc.
acc. to IS GAAP to devel cost correCtion: to IFRS
431.134 {35.817) 395317
18,785 18785
431.134 {35.817) 18,785 414.112
15773 1]
12950 ] IBT3
113.737 113.737
Total cunent assets 142 450 Li] ] 142 460
Total assets 573595 {35.817) 18,785 556,573
1943 1243
34259 634259
IT1.565 123.752 395317
2085 24035
{ 348077 { 159,568 (2.552) {511.233%)
558.605 {35.817) (55T 5121321
1] 13.535 13525
1] Li] 13.525 13525
Curremt Nabilities

Lease lisbilities . 1] 5.703 5.703
Trade payahles .. 1094 1004
Payables to related parties ... 214 214
Orher payables 12691 124 12815
Total curent lisbilifes 14.899 L] 5.827 W.T2T
Total iabilities 14899 Li] 19352 1252
Total equity and liabilities 573595 {35.817) 18,785 556,573

See explanation of change in the Balance Sheet on page 19 and 200

Skt Clouds chy Fimoncial sistenents 20 Amcnants core i [
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Note: continuing:

Restmed Balance Sheet Jomiary 1, 2019

Azzaiz Omiginal Corrections rel Other  Restated acc.
acc. to IS GAAF to devel. cost corrections to IFRS

XT1.565 { 1.063) 270,502

1] 24082 240482

I71.565 { 1.063) 24062 04 564

3323 3113

2.655 21655

Cash and cash equivalents ... 95773 05778
Total current assets 101.657 ] o 101.657

Total assets 313322 ( 1.043) 4082 306221

1.628 1.628

436.179 436179

XT1.565 { 1.063) 270,502

1476 1474

({34841 ( 1.566) { 350.007)

350932 { 1.063) (s 350.778

] 18.737 18737

1] ] 18.737 18737

1] 5325 5325

12290 o0 12380

12290 ] 5415 17.705

Total iabilities 2290 1] 4152 35442

Total squity and liabilities 313222 { 1.063) 24082 306221

Gee explanaton of change in the Balance Sheet on page 19 and 20,

Fabd Clouds ohy- Fimoncial soenesis M0 Amoumis arw i [5E
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Specifications

2020 2019
Development cost

11 44

820135 43938

Salaries and related expenditures

Mandatory soctal secumity contribution . 5431 8.260
Areriaed LBame e e 514 1.157

137918 130.015

(Orther operating expenses

Ccm;ndmuadl_[' systems 4396 1.240
Purchasad SH'L'.i.EE . 4 733 6.139
Advertising and mrkeungmﬁ 35.506 34718
26 ]
1399 o949
Mamtenance of office . 240 63
Cleamingz products ... - 635 576
. 3.600 2870

; - 297 327

L 205

Mandatory fee to RUV (national radio) ... .. 18 15

68.952 62.520

Bolbdd Cloiaki ehif - Flmascial stalaments 10080 Amdusts ané in DK
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Specifications, continued:

Orther payables:

Pen=mion fund= ...
Errplonie tam85 oot i
Unpard becanse of employess

Solial Clouds e - Fimancial stalments JO20 e

2020

393
17
8418

288
18
178

2019

624
1514
7.502
2,634

124

18

9309

12815

Arniss ane in 5K
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Board of Directors” Report

Solid Cloud Games ehf. was founded in 2013. lts purpose is information technology, software development,

creation and marketing of computer games.

‘These financial statements are compiled in accordance with leelandic laws and regulations regarding preparing

and presenting financial statements and in accordance with other applicable laws and regulations.

The operating income for the year 2019 amounted to ISK 55.430.822. Net loss for the year was total ISK
12.071.096. Total assets were ISK 373.222.165 at year end and Stockholder's equity amounted to ISK

360.931.997,
Number of sharcholders at the end of the year are 134 but were 133 at the beginning of the year. The following are
the 10 lurgest shareholders:
Ownerhsip

1.1.2019 31.12.2019
Stefiin Gunnarsson 20,18% 16,90%
Kjolur (jarfestingarfélag ehf. .......oococecocrusssssnes 10,00% 10,00%
Sigurdur Amljé TN% 6,57%
Stefén bdr Bjdmsson 4.94% 4,71%
Toémas Sigurdsson 4.05% 3,38%
Daniel Sigurdsson 3,29% 2,75%
S9 ehf 2.94% 2,46%
Karl ). Karlsson 2,19% 1,83%
Eignarhaldsfélagid CHOAM chf, ......c.o.... .. 2,09% 1,74%
Adalsteinn Haukur SVErriSSOn ... wewimicimsiiassiianss 1,65% 1,38%

We, the board of directors, of Solid Clouds ehf hereby confirm that we are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the financial staements and we hereby ratify these financials statements for the year 2019 with our

signaturcs,

Reykjavik, 28th of July 2020

312, . &\f/l%‘\\
(D =0
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Auditor's Compilation Report

To the board of directors and sharcholder’s of Solid Cloud Games chf.

We have compiled these financial statements for Solid Clouds ehf Reg. no: 600913-2550, Eidistorgi 13-15, 170
Seltjamarnes in accordance with International Standard of ISRS 4410. These financial statements contain a
balance sheet as of December 31, 2019, a statement of income and cash flows for the year then ended, information
about main accounting policies and other notes,

This compilation and our work thereon was done with the main objective to assist those charged with
government and the managing staff of the company to prepare a set of financial statements which give a true and
fair view and are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. They are prepared on the basis of the
information provided by management.

According to law, the board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, We have not performed
an audit or reviewed these financial statements and accordingly we express no assurance thereon.

Reykjavik, 28th of July 2020

Yoy fhictyiiuay

Svalnbjirn Sveinl)j&r#son
State authorized public accountant

=< |
(==
=

islenskir endurskobendur Bildshifda sif
Bildshofoa 14, 110 Reykjavik
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Income Statement 2019

Mote 2019 2018
Operating income

OVPSIRTIILE FEVEIIIES |- oo 85628430 5543082

85.628.430 35430822

Operating expenses

Salanes and related expendihores - 137.389.003 104.100.321

8B.705.5342 73300317

22z 1 SO (  3076912) ( 17.869.493)

Financial income and (expenses)

2440133 5.798.359

Net loss for the vear. .. s { 636779 ( 12071096

Foliad Cloacl wfif - Flmamcial stareeess 209 Apndurs ane in D5K




Balance sheet

Assets

Hote

Fixed assets:

Intanzible assets:

Frxed assets
Current assets
Feceivables:
B
Other vacervables oo

Cumrent assets

Tortal assets

Solial sy iyl Flmancial snalieaty J0IF

2019

431.134.370

2018

271.565.492

431.134.370

271.565.492

15.773.3591
12940 785

113.737.037

3.223.135
2635177

95.778.361

142 460.213

101.656.673

573.59%4.583

IT3.222.165

Aredwets and in BSK




as of Desember 31st 2019

Stockholder s equity

Paid-in capital in excass
legalreserve ...

Cwrrent iabilities

Aceounts payvable ..

Folid Cloiachi ahif - Flmancial stalionenty J0IF

Equity and Liabilities

Mote 2019 2018

910 1.948 461 1.628.461
£34258634  436.178.663
271565492 271565492

{ 349.077.398) ( 348.440.619)

Total stockholders equty 10 558.695.18% 360531997

1.993.940 0
12.905.4534 12.290.168

Ciorent liablhes 145899554 12.290.168

Total Liaknhties 14.899.5354 12.280.168

Total equity and liabilities 573504 583 3TIID65

Arecwsts ané in BSK




Statement of cash flow for the vear 2019

Operating activities

Met e (LOSs] oo eranae
Changes in operating asseis and hamlbhes:
Shert term recervables, change .o

Chomges in operating assets and liabilities
Met cash provided by (for) operating activities

Investing activities:
Capitalized development costs
Investing achwvibes

Financing activities

Met cash flowr from financing actaties

Note

10

Increase (decrease) il Cash s s

Cash at beginning of Year.....c s s

Cash at year end.....ovsiinm s s s s s e

Holld Clougks afyf - Flmameiad iarmess J0IP

—

2019

636.779)

2018

{ 12.071.096)

I2E44 854
2781368

[ 3.875230)
{ 1312429

20.062.996)

{ 5.197.655)

20.699.775)

( 17.268.751)

159.568.878)

{ 97.306.029)

158.568.878)

{ 97.306.029)

198.399.971
172.642)

198227329

17.958.676

95778361

{ 114.574.779)

210355141

113.737.037

95.778.361

Anirts ar in D5K




Notes

Accounting principles

1. These Fmancial Statement= of Solid Clouds ehf for the vear 2019 have been prepared m accordance with applicable
Icelandic laws and regulatons regarding the presentation and comfent of Fimancial Statements and conschdated

financial statemsent= and m accordance with generally accepted accoumting principles.

2 Comparatrve figuwres have been adjusted to conform wath changes mn cwvent year presentation. where applicable.

3. Fevemes from sales are recorded i the accounting penod where the ownership nghts are transferred from the seller

to the buyer.

4. Assats and habilities at the end of vear 2019 which are subject to changes n pnice mdexes are restated based on the
price mdex m the bepmming of vear 2020, Assets and lizlibihes which are subject to chanses m currency exchanze
rates are translated mio ISK based on the most recent rates m December 2019 published by the Central Bank of

Tceland.

Income statement

Development cost 2019

2018

28125791
38370

49.938.853

28.164.161

Salaries and related expenditures 2019

2018

§2329.063
21771258

137385003

104.100.321

Financial revenues and financial expences
2019

2018

5.810.780
12361

2.688.045

5823121

Holial Clowds ehf - Flaancial saleenty J0TF
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Notes continuing:

Intangible assets

8. Deprecizton of mtsnmble asssts 15 caleulated as a fixed anmual percentagze of book valie Intansible assets and
depreciation are specified as follows:

Development Total
oost
Capitalizad L1 20LS e ees 271.5685.492 271585492
Capitalizad development eosts ..o 155568 878 159.568.878
Bookwalue 31 02 0000 e 431.134.370 431.134370
L Tt v L S 0%

Dievelopment costs are expensed as mowred. Costs resulting from the project to the development of products related
to the design and testng of new product: are recogmized as an miangible asset in the balance sheet when the
probability of project success and techmeal abubity o complete the development of products, product sales prospects
are present along with the capacity to measure cost reliably. Other development costs are expensed as mowmed.
Development costs previously expensed i= not capitalized later. Caprtalized development cost are amortized over fime
up o 20 vears.

Equity

9. Conmon stock at end of vear 2018 amounted to ISE 1.948 461, The nonunal value of ezch share 15 ISK 1 and cames
ane vote.

10. Equity accounts:
Apcordine to the appheable laws and repulations, compames that capitalize development costs shall recognrzs the
same amount in retained exmings as a separate tem in equity which 15 not permitted to allocate dnadends from

That 1tenn shall be settled in propartion to the amount of annual depreciation of capitalized development costs. The
item should be dissobved if the asset 15 sold, discontimmed or fully depreciated.

Common  Pard-in capital m

stock excess Legal reserve Retamed losses Total
Paid in commea stock . 1.628.461 436.178.663 271565492 ( 348440615 360831597
Shars EmCTuass ... . . 320,000 198.079.971 198.399.971
Mot boss. Sor the FOaT ..ovo—onre { 636779 ( 636.77%
Eauity 31122019 v 1.945.461 634.255.634 271565492 ( 349.077.398) 558695189

Deferred tax asset

11. Development costs capitabzed m the financial statements amount to ISK 431.134.370 but ISE 9923 930 for tax
purposes. This resulted n 2 reducton of the deferred tax assst.

Defarred tax asset amoumt ISK 86.226.874 15 not recogmized m the financial statements becawse of mhberent
uncertamty. Tax losses camed forward expires after 10 years if not utihzad.

Folhad Clouchi ahf - Flmancial stalieeeaty J009 Arnirts ar in DK
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Notes continuing:

Taxation

12, In accordance to Icelandic legslaton on Income taxes, tansferable losses at the end of vear 2016 amounted to ISK
498 582 646, Transfersble losses ame uszble wathin ten vears from the end of the vear in winch they were Incwred.
They are transferableusable as followrs:

Losz of 2013, usable wnhl the year 2023 oo 967.283
Loss of 2015, usable untl the year 2025 . 32526556
Losz of 2016, usable unhl the year 2026 e 68.584.599
Loss of 2017, usable wnhl the wear 2027 e 106.973.526
Losz of 2018, usable unhl the year 2028 10%.380.025
Loss of 2019, usable wnhl the wear 000 e 160.170.257

Tz Loss camed foraard oo e e e e 498 582 646

Holial Uy fif - Flaancial statieeesty 2009 Arscrts an in BEK
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